
Vegas Episode Guide
Episodes 001–021

Last episode aired Friday May 10, 2013

c ©
w
w
w
.
c
b
s
.
c
o
m

www.cbs.com


c© 2013 www.tv.com c© 2013 www.cbs.com c© 2013 tvrage.com

The summaries and recaps of all the Vegas episodes were downloaded from http://www.tv.com and http://www.cbs.
com and http://tvrage.com and processed through a perl program to transform them in a LATEX file, for pretty printing.
So, do not blame me for errors in the text ¨̂

This booklet was LATEXed on June 28, 2017 by footstep11 with create_eps_guide v0.59

www.tv.com
www.cbs.com
tvrage.com
http://www.tv.com
http://www.cbs.com
http://www.cbs.com
http://tvrage.com


Contents

Season 1 1
1 Vegas . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3
2 Money Plays . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7
3 All That Glitters . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9
4 (Il)Legitimate . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11
5 Solid Citizens . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15
6 The Real Thing . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19
7 Bad Seeds . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23
8 Exposure . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27
9 Masquerade . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29
10 Estinto . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33
11 Paiutes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 37
12 From This Day Forward . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 41
13 Road Trip . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 43
14 The Third Man . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 47
15 Two of a Kind . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 49
16 Little Fish . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 53
17 Hollywood Ending . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 57
18 Scoundrels . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 61
19 Past Lives . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 63
20 Unfinished Business . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 65
21 Sons of Nevada . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 69

Actor Appearances 71



Vegas Episode Guide

II



Season One





Vegas Episode Guide

Vegas

Season 1
Episode Number: 1
Season Episode: 1

Originally aired: Tuesday September 25, 2012
Writer: Nicholas Pileggi, Greg Walker
Director: James Mangold
Show Stars: Carrie-Anne Moss (Katherine O’Connell), Dennis Quaid (Ralph Lamb),

Jason O’Mara (Jack Lamb), Michael Chiklis (Johnny Savino), Taylor
Handley (Dixon Lamb)

Guest Stars: James Russo (Anthony ’Red’ Cervelli), Michael Reilly Burke (Rich
Reynolds), Gil Birmingham (Don Simmons), Michael O’Neill (Mayor
Ted Bennett), William Russ (Mert Hayes), Sonny Marinelli (Nick
’Beansy’ Cota), Joe Sabatino (Vic Borelli), Sean Hennigan (Sheriff
Clinton Hennigan), Kai Lennox (Bob Perrin), Billy Lush (Cale Green),
Richard Edson (Arthur Speziali), James MacDonald (George Blanch-
ford), Matthew Page (Deputy Armstrong), Randy Hall (Mechanic #1),
Judith Baldwin (Dorris Meade), John Newton (William Van Dyke), Ja-
son Douglas (Stuart Mills), Sunny Mabrey (Jodie Kent), Tom Romero
(Desk Clerk), A.J. Rome (Bellman #1), Mark Allan Stewart (Dealer #1),
Casey Messer (Office Worker), Jon Kristian Moore (Cessna Mechanic),
Rob Tode (Bellman #2), Max Ciano (High Roller), John Wylie (Busi-
ness Man), Roy Lea (Dealer #2), Kimberly Hawley (Maid), Dustin Lane
(Horse Rider-Rodeo)

Summary: When rancher Ralph Lamb reluctantly accepts the role of sheriff in
1960s Las Vegas, he now has the authority to take on the mobsters
looking to cash in on the casinos. Chicago mobster Vincent Savino is
the new general manager of the Savoy, the swankiest casino on the
strip, and they instantly clash as Lamb investigates the murder of the
governor’s niece.

The episode begins in Las Vegas in the
1960. Two cowboys are seen riding along-
side each other, with cattle all around
them. Suddenly the cattle begin to run in
fear, on hearing a plane fly by just over-
head. One of the cowboys chases after
the plane in anger. The plane lands at an
airstrip and a man named Vincent Savino
steps out of it. Just then, the cowboy too
arrives at the airstrip. He comes and in a
fit of rage and tells the airport manager
’that plane just scattered my herd’. The
manager though, doesn’t care about the
problems of Ralph the cowboy. He in fact
tells him to move his ranch somewhere

else. Ralph in anger gets into a fight with the workers at the airport.
He knocks out three guys. Just then the cops arrive at the scene. On the other hand, inside

a club in Vegas, the mayor and the DA are informed that a girl was found murdered outside.
The name of the victim is Samantha and she is the governor’s knees. The mayor asks that Ralph
Lamb be brought to him. Ralph, who is in police custody thanks to the fight earlier, is driven to
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the mayor. Ralph arrives at the scene and is informed about the murder, and about the victim.
The Mayor asks Ralph to find her killer. ’I’m not a cop’ Ralph tells the mayor. ’You were, back in
the war an MP of the damn group’ the mayor tells him in return. ’You get those planes to quit
flying over my land and you got a deal’ Ralph tells the mayor.

Vincent tells one of his men that he is going to be his right hand man in Vegas. Vincent then
talks about finding a ’rat’. He goes inside an abandoned casino and sees one of his men beating
up a guy. The man getting beaten up tells Vincent that, his name is Toby and he works at one
of his casinos. Toby gives Vincent the information he requires. Vincent is angry about the fact
that his man beat up Toby, and in anger he beats his man up. He then hands Toby some cash,
and gives him a few weeks off. At the mayor’s office, the DA isn’t happy at Lamb being made in
charge of the case.

He feels he is more qualified than Lamb to handle it. The mayor then tells the DA about a case
during the war, in Naples, where the mayor was Lamb’s senior. Lamb as it turns out, successfully
solved the case of multiple murders of young girls, whose bodies were being found in the nearby
woods. He was as a result, transferred to a special unit. The mayor asks the DA to find him a
man like Lamb, if he wants Lamb out of the case. Lamb and his brother are on the case. They
begin by questioning Samantha’s mother. She tells them Samantha was living with a guy named
Kale, who was a day labor at her ranch. Her mother wasn’t happy that Samantha was seeing
Kale and therefore cut contact with her. At the crime scene, Lamb finds an empty grave that was
covered with a board.

Later, they question Kale, who tells them she had called up and said she would be working
late. Kale also reveals that he was worried Samantha was probably seeing someone else behind
his back. Lamb later meets Vincent, as Samantha was employed in his casino. He gets Lamb and
his brother Jack to talk to the head of the credit department, in which Samantha used to work.
All the information they get from him is that, she was promoted just recently and was handling
high roller accounts. Lamb finds out that Samantha wasn’t seen leaving work from the front
door, the day she got murdered. Lamb as a result looks around the back of the casino to see,
how else she could have gotten out. He arrives at a place in the back where he sees fresh blood
on the floor.

Just then someone hits him on the head from behind. Later, the mayor tells Lamb, who was
found unconscious at the back of the casino that, bikers might have killed her, as bike treads
were found at the crime scene. Lamb thought, isn’t convinced. Later, Lamb and his men along
with the cops, round up a gang of bikers, who are shown creating trouble all around. Lamb
and his team after investigating find out that, the bikers aren’t Samantha’s killers. In the night,
Lamb snoops around in the credit department of the casino. Inside, he finds a diary with three
numbers on it, noted under the very day Samantha was killed. He then accesses the files labeled
with those numbers. As it turns out, the papers, in one of the files, is missing. The number Lamb
finds out, is assigned to someone named Monaco.

Lamb later inquires about Monaco, and finds out that it’s the name of a suite in the casino. A
person named Stuart Mills stayed there Friday night, the same night Samantha was killed. Stuart
left on Saturday in a hurry, and left his cash and bags in his room. Stuart’s wife has confirmed
that, Stuart hasn’t returned home yet. Later, Lamb finds out that Samantha had discovered,
Stuart was skimming money, which could probably be the reason he killed her. Lamb begins
searching for Stuart, who is nowhere to be found. At a barbershop, he is handed a pocket watch
which has Stuart’s name engraved in it. A guy pawned it earlier, for $20. The barber gives Lamb
the guy’s address. The DA is shown talking to the town sheriff. He tells the DA he wants out, and
also asks that the FBI get involved.

He mentions something about buried bodies, and how he can tell the FBI about them. Just
then Vincent and his men arrive at the scene and the DA leaves. The sheriff tries to escape, but
is punched to the ground and has a gun pointed at him. Lamb and his brother arrive at the
address given by the barber. Turns out, it’s a motel, where Stuart is hiding. Lamb calls out for
Stuart from outside his motel room, but receives no reply. He then breaks into his room and sees
that Stuart has escaped from the window. They eventually manage to apprehend Stuart. Later,
Stuart tells Lamb ’I didn’t touch that girl’. He reveals that Samantha had come to him a week
ago, as she wanted a cut of money he was skimming from the casino.

Stuart allegedly told her he already had a deal with the Bob, the credit manager at the casino.
He told Bob about Samantha, and he warned her to back off, but she threatened to go to the
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top brass with the issue. He tells Lamb, all he wanted Bob to do was pay her off or get her a
better job, but then he read about her murder in the papers, and was terrified. Later, Lamb and
his team arrive at an airstrip where, Bob is seen trying to get away in a plane. He on seeing the
cops, tires to escape in his car instead. Lamb though, manages to apprehend him. Later, Lamb
is taken to the scene where the sheriff’s dead body has been found. The mayor appoints Lamb
as the new sheriff.
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Money Plays

Season 1
Episode Number: 2
Season Episode: 2

Originally aired: Tuesday October 2, 2012
Writer: Greg Walker, Nick Santora
Director: Gary Fleder
Show Stars: Dennis Quaid (Ralph Lamb), James Russo (Anthony ”Big Tuna”

Cervelli), Jason O’Mara (Jack Lamb), Michael Chiklis (Johnny Savino),
Taylor Handley (Dixon Lamb)

Guest Stars: Sarah Jones (Mia Rizzo), Michael Reilly Burke (Rich Reynolds),
Aimee Garcia (Yvonne Sanchez), Kai Lennox (Bob Perrin), Amanda
Schull (Carol Reyes), Channon Roe (Ted Ermin), Sonny Marinelli
(Nick ’Beansy’ Cota), Joe Sabatino (Vic Borelli), Lenny Citrano (Scar-
pone), Michael O’Connell (Bill Rickers), George Williams (Tom Agee),
Jonathan Vane (Dale Maggenti), Anne Moore (Emmie), Daniel Robaire
(Valet), Mark Allan Stewart (Blackjack Dealer), Pernille Trojgaard
(Savino’s Secretary), Lauren Pritchard (Savoy Maid), Andrew Thacher
(Driving Federal Agent #1), Ryley Goldsworthy (Cashier), Jeff Larson
(Gambler)

Summary: Sheriff Ralph Lamb, his brother Jack and son Dixon investigate the
murder of a craps dealer in an apparent home robbery that seems to
be connected to a matching crime. Meanwhile, Savino needs to quickly
figure out how to gain the trust of his new count room manager as-
signed to him — Mia Rizzo, the daughter of a mob boss in Chicago —
if he ever wants to achieve his goals in Vegas.

The episode begins with Ralph having
coffee at a diner. Later on the road he
runs into Jack. Just then he sees a man
brush past him and enter the diner, with
a concealed shotgun. He waits at the en-
trance of the diner, and the moment the
man comes out, he trips him with a stick.
Jack then takes his weapon and hand-
cuffs him. Savino arrives at the casino.
Savino goes into the cash department
and asks anybody who was involved with
Bob Paring to ’leave now and never look
back’. Three of the men standing in the
room then immediately walk out. Savino
is hoping Chicago would send them a new

manager, now that the old one has walked out.
He is sure it would be someone they can trust. Ralph, Jack and Dixon investigate the murder

of a craps dealer in an apparent home robbery. They conclude that the murderer wasn’t there to
rob anything, as all the cash in the home is intact. Ralph finds the garage door open and goes
to check it out. He finds car keys lying on the floor of the garage with the car parked nearby.
He opens the boot of the car and inside finds a girl who is alive and well, and visibly terrified.
Later, the girl tells Ralph that she is a waitress at the ’House of Cards Casino’ and that is where
she met the craps dealer. She tells him that she had gone to give him soup, just then someone
knocked, he opened the door and a masked man with a gun barged into the house. ’He tied Wes
up, then he threw me in the trunk’ she tells Ralph.
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She says Wes did not have problems with anybody. Ralph later takes over the old sheriff’s
office, and finds craps in his drawer. ’Looks like Sheriff Clyde was on two payrolls’ he comments.
In jail, Paring’s lawyer offers a deal to the DA and ADA. Paring is basically ready to divulge every
detail about the Chicago mob and about Savino, in return for him being kept out of the gas
chamber. The DA later tells Savino about it. He suggests that Paring be allowed to walk, so he
can be taken out at their convenience. Dixon informs Jack that Wes was in a big game last week.
Jack feels they need to find out, who all were at that game. Dixon it turns out has already found
out.

Later Katherine tells Ralph, none of Wes’s pals have a police record, but one of his friends
Rickers, has a police case against him for spousal abuse. Wes was found tied up with a rope, and
in a photograph rope burns are observed on Rickers’s wife’s wrist, who he physically abused.
Savino is surprised to see that, Chicago has sent a woman as the new manager. Her name is
Mia and Savino seems to know her from before. Mia is basically the daughter of a mob boss in
Chicago. She tells Savino, as the count room manger, she needs to be completely in charge of
it and know everything that is going on there. Ralph questions Rickers about Wes. There are
rope burns on his wrist too. He says the same guys who killed Wes, also tied him up. He further
reveals that he and his wife were both tied up.

The people who tied them up had threatened that; they would be killed if they told anyone
about it. Rickers tells Ralph that, the guys stole $40,000 in cash from his safe. It was the perfect
crime, as Rickers hadn’t paid taxes on that money and hence he couldn’t report it stolen. Later,
Wes’s safe is opened and a lot of cash is found in it. His girlfriend the waitress tells Ralph that,
Wes had earned all the money from tips and had never cheated anybody. Savino is informed that
the Feds are offering Paring, a deal. Savino decides to take care of Paring, once and for all. A
man named Nicholas Cota is sent to do the job. Katherine tells Ralph, someone must be tipping
the robbers off. The security company that installed the safe in both Wes’s and Rickers’s house
must have tipped off the robbers, Jack feels.

The owner of the company is a man named Frank Scarpone, who allegedly has mob connec-
tions. Frank is later taken into custody. Frank tells Ralph, he sold his client list to a few guys
from Missouri. He says he wasn’t aware of the robbery; he simply got cash in return for the list.
He then reveals that all he knows is the guys drove a white Oldsmobile. Cota is about to kill
Paring, with a knife concealed in the frame of his glasses, just then Dixon arrives and Cota has
to change his plans. Dixon takes him away, but Paring realizes what Cota was there for. Later,
Cota is brought in front of Savino by Ralph and Dixon. They leave Cota there, and depart. Savino
later gives Cota a piece of his mind. ’We gotta find out how long before the Feds move Paring’
Savino says.

Ralph is informed about an Oldsmobile with Missouri plates that has been spotted. The three
arrive at the scene with guns. Jack and Ralph enter the house, outside which the vehicle is
parked. Dixon waits outside. Inside they find a man, woman and a child tied up. They then come
face to face with the masked robbers. They manage to get the better of the robbers. Ralph is later
informed that, their perps were a two brother armed robbery crew. The DA commends Ralph,
on a good job done. One of the perps who is caught alive, asks for his lawyer. Ralph then sees
a photo of Wes’s hands, and the way the rope is tied on his hands. He concludes that the perps
who are ’city boys’ couldn’t have tied a knot like the one on Wes’s wrist, as it’s a rancher’s knot.

The family which they found while catching the perps did not have the same kind of knots.
He therefore concludes that it was someone else who killed Wes. Jack says that, whoever did it,
wanted to make the murders look like the robberies. A guy named Ted was friends with both
Rickers and Wes. Rickers was robbed a few months ago by the actual perps and told Ted about
it. Ted must have then cooked up this plan after hearing about the robbery at Rickers’s place. He
basically copied the crime to hide his tracks, so the killing is blamed on the robbery crew. Savino
in the middle of the night, busts a fire hydrant, and quickly leaves. Ralph and Jack question Ted.
They eventually manage to get Ted to confess to his crime.

He reveals that, he did all that he did because Wes took away his woman. Later, Paring is
shown being transferred from the county jail to a federal prison in LA, where he shall await trial
for his crime. Due to the hydrant being broken, the Feds take a different route, with Paring in
their car. On the alternate route that the Feds take, their car is blown sky high. Ralph on the
other hand finds casino chips at his house kept on a table.
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All That Glitters

Season 1
Episode Number: 3
Season Episode: 3

Originally aired: Tuesday October 09, 2012
Writer: Seth Hoffman
Director: Greg Beeman
Show Stars: Dennis Quaid (Ralph Lamb), Michael Chiklis (Vincent Savino), Carrie-

Anne Moss (Katherine O’Connell), Jason O’Mara (Jack Lamb), Taylor
Handley (Dixon Lamb), Sarah Jones (II) (Mia Rizzo)

Guest Stars: Aimee Garcia (Yvonne Sanchez), James Russo (Anthony ”Red”
Cervelli), Joe Sabatino (Vic Borelli), Alano Miller (Ray), Artie O’Daly
(Waiter), Austin Hébert (Ronnie), Dave Florek (Ben Boffa), Doug Simp-
son (Reporter #2), Ed Ackerman (Bouncer), Jamison Haase (Max),
Jim Hanna (Clay Winthrop), Jonathan Banks (Angelo), Kerry Knuppe
(Marlene), Marcus Giamatti (Scotty), Michael Wiseman (Johnny Rizzo),
Toby Meuli (Tommy), Troy Vincent (Reporter #1)

Summary: When Mia’s father Johnny, a hot-headed mob kingpin with a gambling
problem, visits the Savoy, it causes Savino problems and gives Sheriff
Lamb a reason to break out the handcuffs.

The episode begins at the Vegas Conven-
tion Centre where the members of the
US boxing team are being interviewed.
Jack and Ralph are standing in a restau-
rant having a drink; just then a reporter
named Clay walks up to Ralph and asks
to interview him, as he is the new sher-
iff in town. Katherine comes in just then
and informs the two that, the DA’s office
isn’t pursuing the charges against Par-
ing’s death. Jack says that she knows
Savino is behind it. ’You know that there
isn’t anything to prove that, that explo-
sion was anything more than an indus-
trial accident’ she says. Savino walks in

to the restaurant just then. Katherine tells the two that, the man with Savino is Angelo, the head
of the Chicago mob.

He is there to see what Savino has done with the Savoy. Katherine says she has been doing
some research into other people who might know something about Savino and the mob. She asks
the two to come to her office so she can show it to them. The three then leave. At the restaurant,
Savino sees a customer get angry at a steward and handles the situation. The customer is Johnny
Rizzo, a loan shark who can help Savino build a restaurant in the Savoy. Katherine tells the two
how thousands of dollars are earned by the mob bosses thanks to his loans, and hence he is
untouchable. Angelo too favors Johnny. ’We need to figure out their finances and prove that they
are laundering money’ she says.

She also informs Ralph that, the gaming commission has banned Rizzo from playing in any
casino, because he in anger had attacked a dealer, because of which the dealer lost an eye.
’Someone ought to let Mr. Savino know that’ Ralph says. Tommy, one of the boxers from the
US boxing team is seen walking on the streets of Vegas with a busted head that’s bleeding. He
suddenly collapses and falls in the middle of the road. Later, Ralph and Jack check out his body.
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Turns out, he was seen stumbling out of an alley at 6 AM. Tommy’s friend Ray arrives at the
scene. Dixon shows the two a heavy metal object smeared with blood that, was found in the alley.
Suddenly Ray begins running and the two give him a chase.

He enters a diner and begins strangling a man. Ralph pulls him away. Ray says the man was
pursuing Tommy to sign him up, but Tommy knew he was a crook and hence turned down the
man. Tommy even beat up the man, to keep him away. Ralph frisks the man and finds Tommy’s
gold medal on him. Later during questioning the man tells the two how, Tommy badly needed
cash so he come to him and sold his medal. He says Tommy tried to ’clobber’ him because he
had seen needles in Tommy’s bag and was threatening to ’out him’, if he didn’t sign with him.
’Then two hours later he is coming to me desperate for cash’ the man adds. Savino tells Tommy
he can’t be on the floor due to the ban, so as a compromise he has brought the casino into his
room. Savino then discusses with Tommy the plans he has for the Savoy.

Tommy hears him out and says he will talk to the boss. Ralph is informed by Tommy’s trainer
that he had needles in his bag because he was taking painkiller injections in his neck. He had
to take the injection because of a boxing accident that he had. Tommy could barely turn his
head without taking the injections, but it didn’t stop him from getting into the ring. Ralph finds a
token from a strip joint in Tommy’s locker and inquires at the joint. There, he is handed a leather
bag in return for the token. Inside the bag they find a paper with ’some kind of code’ and a gun,
besides some cash. Jack is told Tommy had ripped the token in half and had told the bartender
someone would come and pick up the bag.

Dixon decides to wait at the strip joint, as the person with the torn half of the token might
still show up, they conclude. Tommy finds out that, the dealer is letting him win, and as a result
badly beats him up. Dixon is informed that the bag is gone, while he is busy talking to the
bartender at the joint. Savino arrives in the room and Tommy tells him, he is going downstairs
to play. Savino is fine with whatever Tommy is doing ’so long as he backs the expansion’ of the
Savino. Ralph is busy trying to figure out what the code ’LASTUS7’ written on the piece of paper
means. Ralph is informed that Rizzo is back on the floor, and proceeds to deal with it. Dixon
comes in just then and says that the bag is gone.

The receptionist at the office looks at the code and tells Jack that the code is the schedule
for a bus, leaving at 7 for Tucson from Las Vegas. They arrive at the bus station, and enter the
relevant bus; inside they see a woman sitting with Tommy’s bag. Ralph later arrives at the Savoy
and arrests Tommy on the floor of the casino. Savino tries to stop him, but to no avail. Savino
later gets Tommy out. Tommy tells Savino to take care of Ralph. Savino in turn tells him that no
one touches the sheriff without the boss saying so. Tommy then says he will talk to Angelo. Ralph
figures out that the woman from the bus is the wife of Ronnie Davidson, a teammate of Tommy’s.
’Tommy was trying to help me, to get away from my husband’ Mrs. Davidson tells Ralph, with
tears in her eyes.

Turns out, her husband used to physically abuse her. It was Tommy’s idea for her to run.
Just before she was about to run, Ronnie caught her talking to someone on the phone, but
didn’t know it was Tommy. He threatened to kill her if she didn’t tell him who it was, but she
stood up to him. Then, when she heard about Tommy she assumed Ronnie must have found
out. Ronnie is later brought in for questioning. He confesses to his crime and says that Tommy
was sleeping with his wife, as he saw him hand her a bag the day he died. Katherine comes in
just and calls Ralph out. She informs him that the blow to the head did not kill Tommy, but
instead he died of a heart attack. The painkiller with a combination of prescription drugs could
have resulted in the heart attack, the coroner has said.

Ralph meets Ray and tells him that he has figured out, Ray didn’t want Tommy to fight
because of his injury, so he slipped Tommy some of his asthma pills with his drinks, so he would
feel nauseous and wouldn’t be able to fight. But unfortunately the pills reacted with Tommy’s
painkiller, resulting in the heart attack. Ray breaks down on hearing this. Ronnie is charged with
assaulting Tommy and is told he shall be going away for 8-10 years. Ralph finishes Tommy’s job
by helping out Mrs. Davidson. Angelo doesn’t give the go ahead to kill Ralph, but doesn’t approve
Savino’s business plans either.
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(Il)Legitimate

Season 1
Episode Number: 4
Season Episode: 4

Originally aired: Tuesday October 23, 2012
Writer: Ashley Gable
Director: Matt Earl Beesley
Show Stars: Dennis Quaid (Ralph Lamb), Michael Chiklis (Johnny Savino), Carrie-

Anne Moss (Katherine O’Connell), Jason O’Mara (Jack Lamb), Taylor
Handley (Dixon Lamb), Sarah Jones (II) (Mia Rizzo)

Guest Stars: Haley Strode (Ruth), Michael Reilly Burke (D.A. Rich Reynolds),
Christopher Cousins (Randall), Jamie Denbo (Linda), Rick Fitts
(Porter), David Gallagher (Terry), Joel Gelman (Valet), Greg Grun-
berg (Milton), Roberta Hanlen (Helen), Michael Harney (Leo Farwood),
Megan Henning (Tracy), Keenan Henson (Eddie Wheels), Damon Her-
riman (Jones), Yaani King (Estelle Drew), Michael Maize (Ty), Sonny
Marinelli (Nick ’Beansy’ Cota), Jamie McShane (Davey Cornaro), Scott
Michael Morgan (Albert Durr), William Russ (Mert Hayes), James
Russo (Anthony ’Red’ Cervelli), Joe Sabatino (Vic Borelli), Kristin
Slaysman (Marilyn Lamb), Lindsey Sporrer (Showgirl), Wade Williams
(Sam Kovas), Michael Wiseman (Johnny Rizzo), Kim Yarbrough (Alice)

Summary: When Savino tries to invest in the same casino that the local Milwau-
kee crew has been eyeballing, Milwaukee comes after him. Meanwhile,
when Sheriff Lamb investigates the murder of an African American
maid, he’s surprised to uncover her connection to one of the town’s
most wealthy businessmen.

The episode begins with Ralph standing
in his farm with his horse. Later, he and
Jack receive a call to ’go and be sheriffs’.
Savino is busy questioning a patron who
has been caught stealing in the casino.
Ralph and Jack enter his office and he
asks them to arrest the Patron named
Dorr, for cheating. Savino is later in-
formed that Chicago is sending Angelo’s
nephew to work at the Savoy. Savino has
decided to expand from the outside, as he
isn’t being allowed to expand from the in-
side. He as a part of his efforts has be-
come a part owner of a club across the
street named ’Tumbleweed Club’.

The staff at the Tumbleweed is shown having a meeting. A union leader, who is presiding over
the meeting, tells everyone how the club is falling apart. One of the maids named Estelle isn’t
happy about the fact that, the leader is calling for a strike. She feels the staff shouldn’t go on
strike at least until their contracts are up, which is in the next 6 months. She suggests that
everybody needs to sacrifice now, so they can dictate terms when their contract is up. Everybody
claps for Estelle and her views. Later, on her way home, Estelle is deliberately knocked down by
a car, which then drives away. Ralph later arrives at the scene and sees Estelle’s lifeless body
lying on the road. An eyewitness tells Ralph how a car swerved to the other side of the road and
hit Estelle.

11



Vegas Episode Guide

The eyewitness says the car might have been blue or green in color. Jack is informed about the
meeting and how Estelle had a difference of opinion with Kovacks the union leader. Savino meets
up with Hayes, the owner of Tumbleweed. He tells Hayes how he can help turn his place around.
Hayes says he needs time to think things over. A man named Randall comes to meet Ralph with
his son Terry. Randall tells Ralph Estelle was his housekeeper’s daughter. ’We’ve known Estelle
since she was little girl’ Randall says. ’I wanna help any way I can’ he adds. Basically, Randall
wants to offer a cash reward for finding Estelle’s killer. Ralph later visits Estelle’s house and sees
that it’s been broken into. He quietly enters the house and hears someone escape. He then sees
a black car drive away in a hurry.

Ralph asks Jack and Dixon to run the number on the license plate of the car. Ralph is
informed the car is registered in Kovacks’s name. Ralph later catches hold of Kovacks, who tells
him he didn’t break into Estelle’s apartment, as her door was already busted, when he went
there. Ralph then fishes out a list from Kovacks’s pocket, which has names on it. He says they
are the names of Estelle’s friends who were against the strike. ’I just wanted to talk to them’
Kovacks says. Kovacks also reveals Estelle was having a relationship with a white man. While
Ralph is talking to Katherine at the Tumbleweed, someone throws a bomb inside the club. The
two, narrowly escape. Hayes tells Savino how he is being pressurized to sell the Tumbleweed to
a goon named Cornaro.

Savino promises to gets Conaro off Hayes’s back, but in return wants Hayes to partner with
him for the Tumbleweed. ’Get him out of my hair completely’ says Hayes. Savino later meets
Cornaro and tells him he is planning to buy the Tumbleweed. He then asks Cornaro to back
off. Savino offers Cornaro a lucrative deal, and convinces him to back off. Ralph and Jack find
out Estelle has been getting a $500 bank deposit every month. They find out its being sent by
Randall. The two then pay him a visit. ’You wanna to tell us why you were giving Estelle money
every month?’ Ralph asks Randall. Randall admits to the two that, Estelle was his daughter.
Savino on the other hand gets shot at, the moment he parks his car. He manages to escape the
bullets and drives out of the parking garage.

Randall tells Ralph how Estelle paid him a visit last week and begged him to acknowledge
her as his daughter. He tells Ralph how he was trying to do right by Estelle and even giving her
money for college. He says he had agreed to tell his wife Helen the truth. Later at the Savoy,
Savino tells the DA the shooting was Carnaro’s doing. He asks the DA to arrest Carnaro for some
outstanding warrants. Jack and Ralph find out that, Randall’s son Terry is the one, who drives a
green colored car. They later ask Terry about the car and where it is. ’It’s in the shop’ Terry says.
He admits that he is the one who broke into Estelle’s house for her jewelry, as he needed money
for drugs. They find the jewelry box in his house and hidden inside the box are photographs of
Estelle meeting Randall.

Ralph figures out that, someone was blackmailing Estelle for money. A staff member at the
Tumbleweed tells Katherine she had seen Hayes with Cornaro, just before the bombing at the
Tumbleweed. Johnny pays Savino a visit at the Savoy and says how he has heard that Savino
is making a move on the Tumbleweed. Johnny says he wants half of Savino’s share in the Tum-
belweed. Ralph finds out that a woman named Tracy who was working at the Tumbleweed with
Estelle, knew Estelle’s secret and was blackmailing her. He figures this out from the negatives of
the photographs he found in the jewelry box. She is later questioned by Ralph and Jack. They
also inform her how they have found out from her bank statement that, Estelle was paying her
money each month to keep quite.

In the end, Tracy comes out and tells the truth. She tells them how she was frustrated at
not earning enough when others were getting rich every day. She then found out about Estelle’s
secret and just couldn?t stomach the fact that Estelle would have it easy. She then blackmailed
Estelle and got money out of her each month, but in the end Estelle decided to come out with
the truth and stopped paying her. Estelle also threatened to send Tracy to jail, for what she had
done. As a result, to shut Estelle up, Tracy ran her down with her blue dodge. Katherine later
tells Ralph, Cornaro is behind the Tumbleweed bombing. Mia apologizes to Savino about her
father dropping in. ?If I?d known I would have given you a heads up? she says.

Savino though, is fine with it and tells her ?looks like the Tumbleweed will be ours?. Carnaro
and his bodyguard on the other hand are disposed off, by Savino?s men. While sitting alone at
home, Ralph thinks about his deceased wife. He then imagines her hanging clothes out to dry
in the front yard. James meets up with Mia outside the Savoy, he asks Mai out to dinner. ?I?m
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sorry I already have plans? she says, just then the DA parks his car near them. She tells Jack
how the DA has promised to show her around town. She leaves with the DA in his car.
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Solid Citizens

Season 1
Episode Number: 5
Season Episode: 5

Originally aired: Tuesday October 30, 2012
Writer: Jim Adler
Director: Roxann Dawson
Show Stars: Dennis Quaid (Sheriff Ralph Lamb), Michael Chiklis (Johnny Savino),

Carrie-Anne Moss (Katherine O’Connell), Jason O’Mara (Jack Lamb),
Taylor Handley (Dixon Lamb), Sarah Jones (II) (Mia Rizzo)

Recurring Role: James Russo (Anthony ”Red” Cervelli), Joe Sabatino (Vic Borelli)
Guest Stars: Sonny Marinelli (Nick ”Beansy” Cota), Vinessa Shaw (Laura Savino),

Todd Grinnell (Andy Meacham), Nicole DuPort (Jane Ludlow), Greg
Grunberg (Milton Ludlow), Peter Murnik (John Turley), Phoenix List
(Tim Ludlow), Damon Herriman (Mr. Jones), Jim Ortlieb (Gus Wilson),
Brian Oblak (Sarge), Bill Zasadil (Joe), Gil Birmingham (Don Sim-
mons), Haley Strode (Ruth), Keenan Henson (Eddie), Michael O’Neill
(Mayor Ted Bennett), Michael Maize (Ty), Joel Gelman (Valet)

Summary: When the son of a member of the Nevada Gaming Commission is
kidnapped, Sheriff Lamb suspects Savino’s behind it. Savino’s wife,
Laura, comes out to Vegas with promises that their family will be safe,
just as a Milwaukee hit man lands in town.

The episode begins with Savino having a
chat with a banker, at the Savoy. Fowler
the banker and Savino discuss about
how traditions matter to Mormons, and
Fowler is one of them. Fowler in that con-
text asks Savino whether his wife will be
at the party at his country club. Savino
assures him that she will. ’I look forward
to meeting her’ Fowler says. ’The type of
woman a man chooses, speaks volumes
about him’ Fowler adds. ’I’m sure you
won’t be disappointed’ Savino says. Later,
Savino’s wife Laura arrives at the Savoy.
At the sheriff’s office, Katherine informs
Ralph that Cornaro is missing. Just then

the Mayor arrives there. He asks Ralph to sign papers to officially become the sheriff.
Ralph though, isn’t too keen on it. At a road contractor’s home, his wife discovers that their

son Tim has been kidnapped. She at a distance sees someone take him away and runs in that
direction. She comes onto the street and sees a car speeding away, with Tim in it. Ralph is later
informed that the kidnappers were driving a brown Ford Galaxy. Ralph and Jack drive around
and see the Galaxy parked outside a house. The car catches fire just as Ralph approaches it.
Jack pulls Ralph away from the car. The focus then shifts to Milwaukee. A man named Jones
picks up a call. ’I’ll be on the next plane’ he says to the man on the other side. Jones before the
call was busy torturing a man and gets back to it after the call. Back in Vegas, the fire has been
put out, and Ralph looks inside the Galaxy. He concludes the kidnappers switched their cars,
but no one saw the switch.

Jack informs Ralph that Tim’s father Milton Larsen besides being a contractor is also newest
member of the gaming commission. ’Casinos need his vote to get a gaming license’ Jack says.
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Jack fears, Milton might have made enemies as a result. Later, Milton’s wife tells Ralph how
she had seen the gardener leave, but did not suspect anything. Because their ’lawn man uses a
different person for different chores’ she says. Dixon finds the vehicle ID number on the Galaxy
and proceeds to find out who owns it. Savino is informed that ’Jones from Milwaukee is here’.
Next, Savino meets Jones who is sitting at the casino. Jones says he is looking for Davy Cornaro.
Savino says he hasn’t seen him for a while. Savino suggests Cornaro might have skipped town
due to union issues. Jones in turn says he can’t leave town till he has located Cornaro. Later,
Savino asks Tony to make it look as if Cornaro has skipped town, as he doesn’t want Jones
sniffing around. Milton gets a call from the kidnapper who asks him to arrange for $80000 by
’tomorrow’.

The call is being tapped and Ralph and Jack too are listening in on it. Tim is also brought
onto the phone. ’Cross us and it’s the last time you will hear his voice’ the kidnapper says, before
hanging up. The call was made from a telephone booth, Ralph later finds out. Ralph is also
handed a lighter found in Galaxy. The lighter was used to torch the car and it turns out it has a
military insignia on it. Ralph figures out that, military men might be involved in the kidnapping.
Dixon finds out that the Galaxy was sold to a man who called himself Sarge. The person who
sold the car had also heard Sarge tell his accomplice that, they would meet up at a motel named
Kings. Ralph locates Kings on a map and leaves with Jack and Don. The three arrive at the motel
and get fired on by one of the kidnappers who, sees them.

Ralph in the end manages to shoot the kidnapper, but Tim isn’t found in his motel room. Tim’s
mother recognizes the kidnapper as Wade Ollum, who used to work for her father. Ralph then
figures out Milton is planning to pay the kidnappers. Ralph decides to keep a watch on Tim’s
parents and also decides to keep tapping their phone, so he can catch the kidnappers. Savino on
the other hand is worried that, if Jones finds out the truth there might be war between Chicago
and Milwaukee. Tony tells Savino he is going to put Cornaro’s car at the airport to make Jones
think he flew to LA. The only problem is they can’t find Cornaro’s car. Savino isn’t too happy to
hear this. He tells Tony that he wants the job done at any cost.

Dixon finds out that about two weeks ago Wade cashed a check for $20,000, from a man
named Gus Wilson. Jack concludes that Wade was paid the money in order to carry out the
kidnapping. Gus a small time casino owner is later questioned, but says he knows nothing about
a kidnapping. He reveals that the money was a bribe he gave to Wade, as he had said he knew
someone who could help deliver Milton’s vote. Gus says the man who Wade claimed could help
was Wade’s bother-in-law Andy Mitchum. ’But he didn’t come through’ Gus adds. So Gus asked
Wade for his money back. ’Did he pay ya?’ Ralph asks. ’Said he’d have in cash by tomorrow’ Gus
says. Ralph later questions Andy about the issue. Andy in the end confesses to the crime. ’Gus
wanted his money back; I had already spent it’ Andy tells a livid Milton.

Andy tells Ralph how his people double-crossed him and now they want all the money or Tim
is dead. ’They are Wade’s people I have never even met them’ Andy says. Later, Ralph dressed as
Andy arrives alone at the designated location where the kidnappers had asked that, the drop be
made. The kidnappers are convinced that Ralph is actually Andy. Jack, gun in hand, is watching
Ralph and the two kidnappers from a distance. The kidnappers find a briefcase filled with money
in the car. Ralph asks them to hand over Tim, now that they have the money. The kidnappers
are willing to hand over Tim and instead proceed to shoot Ralph. But, before that can happen,
Jack shoots the kidnapper and the other one is taken care of by Ralph. Ralph then finds Tim in
a nearby shed. Later, Ralph hands Tim over to his parents.

They are overjoyed to see him alive and well. Andy on the other hand is put in jail. ’I’m so
sorry I ever doubted you sheriff’ Milton says. Savino’s guys in the end manage to find Cornaro’s
car and place it in the airport parking lot, just as planned. Jones finds the car in the parking lot,
and in it finds a receipt for an air ticket to LA. Later, Tony informs Savino that Jones took their
bait and is headed for LA. Savino tells Tony the dinner with the banker went really well. ’I got
the Tumbleweed’ Savino adds. Later, Ralph and Savino meet up near a corn field. ’What do you
want sheriff?’ Savino asks. ’You crossed a line’ Ralph says. Savino tells Ralph he is a law-abiding
citizen, or he would already be in jail. ’The time will come; secrets don’t stay buried neither do
bodies’ Ralph tells Savino, while looking at the corn field.

He basically is hinting that Cornaro is probably buried in the corn field somewhere, as corn
husk was found under Cornaro’s car, at the parking lot. Savino suggests that everybody gets
buried in the ground someday. ’How we get there counts for something. Chew on that’ Ralph
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says. ’I sure will’ Savino says with a smirk and drives away.
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The Real Thing

Season 1
Episode Number: 6
Season Episode: 6

Originally aired: Tuesday November 13, 2012
Writer: Vanessa Reisen
Director: Alex Zakrzewski
Show Stars: Dennis Quaid (Sheriff Ralph Lamb), Michael Chiklis (Johnny Savino),

Carrie-Anne Moss (Katherine O’Connell), Jason O’Mara (Jack Lamb),
Taylor Handley (Dixon Lamb), Sarah Jones (II) (Mia Rizzo)

Recurring Role: Joe Sabatino (Vic Borelli)
Guest Stars: Sonny Marinelli (Nick ”Beansy” Cota), Vinessa Shaw (Laura Savino),

Michael Reilly Burke (D.A. Rich Reynolds), Richmond Arquette (Jackie
Sullivan), Jim Holmes (Dr. Howard Safran), Alesa B. Gantz (Cheryl),
Matthew Iott (Frank), Jeffrey Johnson (Marty Gilson), Karina Logue
(Vicky Safran), Michael O’Neill (Mayor Ted Bennett), P.J. Marino
(Jimmy), Gil Bellows (George Grady), Gary Kraus (Truck Driver), Nick
Warnock (Security Guard 1), Mark McGowan (Security Guard 2),
Mekenna Melvin (Holly Edwards), Alex Nesic (Jesse Lynch), Benton
Jennings (Moderator), Lindsey Sporrer (Showgirl), Sean McBride (Perp
1), Adam Coggins (Perp 2), Marco Ragozzino (Perp 3)

Summary: Savino interjects himself into local politics when he decides to groom
mob-friendly Mayoral Candidate George Grady. Sheriff Lamb looks
into the murder of a local dentist who had a gambling addiction.

The episode begins with Dixon pointing a
gun at three guys with their pants down.
Turns out, the tree robbed a store in Ari-
zona and then crossed over into Vegas.
Ralph by threatening to kill the guys gets
them to reveal where they have hidden
the loot. Ralph then warns the three to
never return to his state and lets them go.
Dr. Saffron, who is a dentist, attends to a
showgirl who has lost her tooth. At the
Savoy, Mia is informed by a gaming con-
trol officer named Marty Gilson that the
mayor has authorized an auditor for ev-
ery casino in town. She is asked to hand
over the records to the Savoy’s gaming

business.
Mia later finds out that there are fake chips circulating in the Savoy. Savino is informed about

it. He says there is only one man named Jackie Sullivan, who can do such a good job of faking a
gambling chip. ’If he is not behind this my money says he knows who is’ Savino says. He instructs
his men to find Jackie. Savino is also bothered about the gaming commission’s intrusion. He is
going to Chicago to explain the situation to Angelo. ’If we don’t get the mayor off our backs and
his tugs out of our game room, it could be the end of everything we have worked for’ Savino says.
’Who gives a damn about some fake chips, if there is no more casino’ he exclaims. The showgirl
wakes up in the dentist’s chair and finds Dr. Saffron missing. She goes looking for him.

Eventually, she finds him lying on the floor of the reception, motionless. Later at the crime
scene, Jack tells Ralph that Dr. Saffron was quite the gambler. A little later, Howard Saffron’s
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ex-wife arrives. She tells Jack and Ralph about Howard’s gambling addiction. She reveals that
the divorce proceedings between Howard and her are not yet complete. She adds that Howard
was broke. Also it turns out; Howard owed his bookie $40,000. The name of his bookie is Pollock,
Jack assumes, as that is what is written in Howard’s diary. ’Maybe he meant an actual Polish
person’ the ex-wife says. ’The man couldn’t spell to save his life’ she adds. Savino feels Mayor
Benet has to be replaced with a guy more favorable to his business.

He has a guy named George Grady in mind. Savino asks his man to find George, and get
George to him. Later, Savino questions Jackie Sullivan about the fake chips. ’I’m sorry I got
nothing’ he says. In the meantime, Howard’s bookie, a guy named Jimmy the Pollack, is brought
in front of Ralph. Turns out, Jimmy has quite a police record. Jimmy says he did not kill Howard,
as he didn’t owe him any money, anymore. ’Paid off his debt last Tuesday’ Jimmy elaborates, ’all
$37,400’ in cash. Jack takes Ralph aside and informs him that, every month Howard wrote a
check of $161 to Oak Grove Property Rentals. Ralph concludes, Howard was probably keeping a
girl on the side. Savino on the other hand meets George Grady. Savino offers to help Grady with
his campaign.

Grady reads between the lines and in turn offers to help Savino, if he gets elected. Laura too,
offers to help Savino in ousting Benet. Ralph and Jack arrive outside the Oak Grove suite that
Howard was paying for and see the main door ajar. It looks as if someone has broken in. They
enter and see that the suite has been converted to some sort of a lab. Someone has already been
there and ransacked the place. Ralph then finds evidence that ’Howard wasn’t making fake teeth,
he was making fake chips’. Jack concludes Howard might have cashed many fake chips and that
is how he managed to pay off his bookie. Fake Savoy chips have been found in the lab. Ralph
and Jack therefore proceed to have a chat with Savino. They tell Savino about Howard and his
fake chips.

Jack informs him that someone cleared off Howard’s lab of all the fake chips, and might be
using them at the Savoy. Savino takes only Ralph, to talk to Jackie Sullivan, about the chips.
Jackie says he hasn’t heard of Howard, but knows that dental cement can make really good
chips. Dixon and Ralph later pay the factory that makes ’professional grade dentist cement’ a
visit. The open the factory door and see the security guard lying dead on the floor. He has been
shot in the chest. They find out that, the only thing missing is a case of dental cement. The killer
didn’t have a license like Howard to procure the cement and hence had to kill to get it. Jack goes
to the Savoy to find out, if Howard had a partner. He and Mia then go through the records to see,
when all Howard was at the casino.

Ralph tells Savino about the huge case of dental cement that has been stolen. ’You are going
to be buried in fakes before you know it’ Ralph says. After checking the entries, Jack and Mia find
out that, a cashier was hand in glove with Howard. The two then proceed to talk to the cashier
in question. Just then, a man wearing a Savoy uniform is shown carting in a case of chips into
the casino. The man bearing the chips enters the locker where the chips are all stored. He then
renders the security guards unconscious. Ralph and Savino on the other hand figure out the
perp’s plan. They rush to the locker and Savino opens it. Sitting inside the locker all gagged and
tied, are the two security guards. The perp it turns out stole $500,000 in cash along with some
real chips kept in the locker. Just then, a cashier named Holly is presented before Ralph and
Savino, by Jack.

Holly is arrested and rushed to the precinct by Ralph and Jack. Savino isn’t happy about it,
as he wanted to deal with Holly and get the information out, in his own way. He feels it would
have been much faster. Dixon informs Ralph that, Holly is a patient of Howard’s. Ralph has a talk
with Holly and convinces her to come out with the truth. She reveals that like Howard she too
had debt, so they decided to help each other out. ’He’d make the chips and I would cash them’
she says. The plan it turns out, was formulated by her boyfriend Jesse. Then, Jesse wanted a
big amount encased all at once, but Howard didn’t want to do it. Therefore Jesse killed Howard
and took his moulds. He then began making his own chips. ’Jesse swore to me that he wouldn’t
hurt Howard’ Holly says, with tears in her eyes. ’But he did’ Ralph says. ’Did it ever occur to you
that you might be next?’ Ralph asks her.

Savino on the other hand apprehends Jesse in his trailer, just when he is about to make a run
for it. While pointing a gun at Jesse, he asks him to step out of the trailer. The moment the two
step out, they see Ralph standing outside. Savino reluctantly hands over Jesse to Ralph, but not
before punching Jesse in the face. Later, Grady seems to make a good impression on the viewers
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during a television debate. But, it’s more to do with his looks than his capability.
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Bad Seeds

Season 1
Episode Number: 7
Season Episode: 7

Originally aired: Tuesday November 20, 2012
Writer: Greg Walker, Nick Santora
Director: Jeff T. Thomas
Show Stars: Dennis Quaid (Sheriff Ralph Lamb), Michael Chiklis (Johnny Savino),

Carrie-Anne Moss (Katherine O’Connell), Sarah Jones (II) (Mia Rizzo),
Taylor Handley (Dixon Lamb), Jason O’Mara (Jack Lamb)

Recurring Role: James Russo (Anthony ”Red” Cervelli), Joe Sabatino (Vic Borelli)
Guest Stars: Sonny Marinelli (Nick ”Beansy” Cota), Vinessa Shaw (Laura Savino),

Damon Herriman (Mr. Jones), Michael O’Neill (Mayor Ted Bennett),
Jonathan Banks (Angelo LaFlatta), Michael Wiseman (Johnny Rizzo),
Gil Bellows (George Grady), Dustin Seavey (Deputy Roberts), James
Handy (Mr. Dobbs), Gill Gayle (Farmer), Peter Coventry Smith (Son),
Jim Klock (Deputy 1), Jeff Staron (Ferro), Michael Pasternak (Wise
Guy), Thom Williams (Man 1), Kelvin Brown (Lyle Plimpton), Jamie
McShane (Davey Cornaro)

Summary: Sheriff Lamb finds himself in the unusual position of protecting Savino
when Milwaukee puts out a hit on the mobster. Also, the results of the
mayoral election are in.

The episode begins and a father and son
duo, find a body buried in their corn-
field. At the Savoy, Savino isn’t happy
that Bennett and Grady are neck in neck.
He basically wants Grady to win, so Ben-
nett can be sent packing. Grady comes
in and shows Savino a flyer doing the
rounds. The flyer compares Bennett to
Stalin. Grady isn’t happy with it and says
’I didn’t agree to this type of campaign’.
Savino though, feels that the flyers are
’damn good’. Savino’s wife in the end
makes Grady see sense and convinces
him that, they need to do all that it takes
to win. Ralph and team arrive at the corn-

field, where two bodies have been found buried.
Basically, the bodies are of Cornaro and his bodyguard. ’Guess this is what happens when

you try to take the Tumbleweed away from Savino’ Ralph says. Ralph fears that if Milwaukee
hears about this, there will be people sent to deal with Savino. Jones is sent back to Vegas by
Milwaukee, to deal with the situation. Savino finds out about the bodies and reprimands his men
for burying the bodies in a farm, where the ground is frequently turned over. Jones on the other
hand begins his mission, by taking out one of Savino’s men. A woman sees him in the act, so he
also shoots the woman.

Ralph and Jack later arrive at the crime scene. ’We are dealing with somebody here, who
doesn’t mind shooting civilians across his path’ Ralph concludes. Ralph and Katherine then pay
Savino a visit. Ralph tells Savino, the innocent woman died because of his war with Milwaukee,
and therefore it’s his fault. ’I didn’t pull any trigger’ Savino protests. Ralph asks Savino, as to
which of his men killed Cornaro. ’Even if I did know something, did you actually walk in here
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thinking I would give up one of my guys?’ Savino says. Ralph says he didn’t. Ralph then instructs
his men to post themselves inside the Savoy. Savino isn’t happy about it, but Ralph says he is
just protecting Savino’s customers, as he doesn’t want any more innocent civilians killed. ’If you
happen to know who killed Cornaro, you let me know’ Ralph tells Savino with a smirk.

In Chicago, Johnny informs Angelo that the Savoy has shut down. Angelo isn’t happy to hear
this and feels all this is happening because of Savino’s interest in the Tumbleweed. Johnny
basically tells Angelo that, Savino isn’t really up to the job of managing the Savoy and therefore
isn’t really needed. Ralph and team finds Jones’s car, which he left behind in panic, near the
crime scene. At the Savoy, Angelo, Johnny and Savino are having a meal together. Angelo isn’t
at all in a good mood. Savino tries reasoning with him and explains that things will eventually
be fine. Angelo is in no mood to listen and instead asks Savino to listen. He says he knows
Savino’s guys killed Cornaro and fears that Milwaukee will burn Vegas to the ground, as they
have nothing to lose.

Angelo feels they need to make peace with Milwaukee, so they don’t lose everything they have
built in Vegas. Therefore, Angelo’s solution is for Savino to let go of the Tumbleweed, as that is
the root of the whole problem. Savino isn’t happy with the solution and says ’that is our future’.
’There is no future Vincent, unless I fix what you broke’ Angelo counters. ’You need to realize,
I am not just trying to save the Savoy I am trying to save you’ Angelo adds. Ralph and Jack
find out that, Jones’s car is actually not his, and he is just giving them the runaround. Jones in
the meantime, gets past the cops at the Savoy by pretending to be a carpet salesman, there for
a meeting with Savino. One cop though suspects something and follows Jones. He sees Jones
taking out his gun, about to enter Savino’s office.

He immediately removes his own gun and from behind instructs Jones to drop his gun. Jones
puts his hands up, but instead of dropping the gun he suddenly turns around and shoots the
cop twice. Savino hears the gunshots and comes out of his office, gun in hand. He chases after
Jones, but Jones makes good his escape. Savino then sees the injured cop and asks Red to
call an ambulance. Savino later tells Ralph about Jones and how dangerous he can be. Ralph
places Savino under arrest and decides to keep him under his observation, so Jones doesn’t hurt
innocent people or Savino. Johnny and Angelo see Savino being hauled away. Jones on the other
hand is dealing with a bullet wound. Turns out, one of Savino’s bullets caught him in the arm.
Jones later finds out that Savino is being protected by Ralph. Jones then calls up Milwaukee and
says ’I will need a few more men’.

Ralph is holding Savino captive in his home. ’Are you serious about keeping me here?’ Savino
asks. Savino tells Ralph to worry more about himself than about him, as Jones is a ’psycho’.
’You should be out there right now, looking for him’ Savino adds. Jack finds out that Jones
knows about Ralph protecting Savino. At home, Savino and Ralph are bonding over dinner.
Dixon and Jack track down the motel from where Jones called the station to find out about
Savino’s whereabouts, pretending to be a clerk from the DA’s office; the two, then head for the
motel. At the Savoy, Johnny tells someone over the phone ’it will be over by the night’. Savino
asks Ralph questions about his personal life and clearly Ralph isn’t comfortable answering them.
Savino asks about Ralph’s wife and assumes she must have left him while he was away at the
war.

’She died’ Ralph says solemnly. Ralph elaborates that, she died in a car accident. Jack calls
Ralph and informs him about Jones. Ralph looks out of the window and sees Jones’s car ap-
proaching his house. ’He is already here’ Ralph tells Jack. Ralph hurriedly gathers his shotgun
and leaves to deal with the situation. He leaves behind Savino handcuffed to the dining table.
Ralph takes care of two of Jones’s men, but eventually finds Jones pointing a gun at him. But,
before Jones can shoot him, Savino who has managed to free himself shoots at Jones but misses.
Jones immediately runs for cover. Savino and Ralph chase after Jones. Eventually, Ralph man-
ages to shoot Jones in the hand and disarms him. Jones is pinned to the ground, with Ralph
standing over him holding a gun. Just then Jack and Dixon arrive.

Later, its business as usual at the Savoy, also there seems to be romance brewing between
Mia and Jack. Johnny and Angelo pay Savino a visit. Johnny congratulates Savino for teaching
Milwaukee a lesson. ’Since you and your sheriff took out their best man, Milwaukee is ready to
talk’ Angelo tells Savino. ’We need to straighten out this Tumbleweed business once and for all’
Angelo then says. Johnny and Angelo ask Savino to come along with them just for an hour, to
sort out the issue. The three drive to an empty area. They get out of the car and Savino guesses
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what’s coming. Angelo tells Savino he loves him like a son, but he has to make amends with
Milwaukee as they have lost their men. ’I am paying them back with the Tumbleweed and I am
paying them back for Cornaro with you’ Angelo tells Savino.

Savino realizes his time is up and tells Johnny ’bury me deep will ya’. Johnny then points the
gun at Savino but instead of shooting him he turns around and shoots Angelo, much to Savino’s
surprise. ’He was getting soft, in old days he would have seen that setup coming’ Jonny says.
Johnny asks Savino to relax and says ’we need you back at work’. ’Back home they didn’t like
the idea him giving the Tumbleweed to Milwaukee. Now you work for me. Vegas is mine’ Johnny
says with a smile. Savino is in too much of a shock to say anything. Bennett informs Ralph, he
has lost the elections. He also informs Ralph that he has been officially appointed as the sheriff.
Grady is shown celebrating his victory and so is Johnny. Savino returns home, much to his wife’s
relief.
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Exposure

Season 1
Episode Number: 8
Season Episode: 8

Originally aired: Tuesday November 27, 2012
Writer: Seth Hoffman, Steven Levenson
Director: Duane Clark
Show Stars: Dennis Quaid (Sheriff Ralph Lamb), Michael Chiklis (Johnny Savino),

Carrie-Anne Moss (Katherine O’Connell), Jason O’Mara (Jack Lamb),
Taylor Handley (Dixon Lamb), Sarah Jones (II) (Mia Rizzo)

Guest Stars: Vinessa Shaw (Laura Savino), Michael Wiseman (Johnny Rizzo), Aimee
Garcia (Yvonne Sanchez), Aaron Jennings (Gary Hil), Deanna Dou-
glas (Waitress), Tim Griffin (Lt. Norman Kemp), Ivana Milicevic (Di-
ane Desmond), Amy Davidson (I) (Jenny), Karl Makinen (Lou Massey),
James Immekus (Henry McCallister), Reiley McClendon (Sgt. Michael
Benson), Rj Wolfe (Air Policeman)

Summary: Rizzo complicates life for Savino when he hires a popular singer at the
Savoy who is also Savino’s ex-mistress, Diane Desmond. Meanwhile,
Ralph, Jack and Dixon share jurisdiction with the military on a mur-
der case when clues lead them to a nearby Air Force base.

The episode begins with Dixon being
kissed and woken up by a woman, in
bed. Dixon realizes he is late for work and
rushes out. Savino pays Ralph a visit at
his office. Mia too has accompanied him.
Jack finds her waiting in his office. Jack
flirts around with her. Just then Dixon
enters the station. Savino hands Ralph
a bottle of Scotch, which Ralph refuses
to accept, but Savino insists. Just then
Ralph is informed that a body has been
found on ’the Westside’. At the scene,
Ralph sees a trail of oil leading from near
the body. Ralph and Jack follow the trail.
At the end of the trail they see a man re-

pairing his vehicle.
He makes a run for it on seeing the two, but Dixon cuts him off with the squad car. Ralph

finds out from the wallet found on the person who was trying to run that, the victim’s name is
Edward Dozer. Gary the guy, who made a run for it, says he found the wallet in the victim’s car.
’I didn’t kill anyone’ Gary says. Gary admits he took the car, but reiterates that he didn’t kill
anyone. A Lieutenant of the air force named Norman Kemp, arrives at the station and tells Ralph
that he can assist them with the investigations. He says that Edward was their ’lead medic’.
Norman then asks to interrogate Gary. ’Be my guest, but he didn’t do it’ Ralph says. Johnny
introduces Savino and Laura to a famous singer named Diane Desmond, who he says is going to
perform at the Savoy.

It seems that Diane knows Savino from before, and Savino looks apparently uncomfortable
with her appearance. Later, Diane pays Savino a visit, in his office. Diana brings up their past
history together. ’It was eight years ago’ Savino says. Diana tells Savino, how he had said he
would leave his wife for her. ’I tell a lot of people a lot of things’ he says. Diana admits that she
is using Johnny to get close to Savino. Ralph finds out about Edward’s girlfriend named Jenny
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and has a talk with her. She in tears tells Ralph and Norman that, Edward was upset for some
reason, but wouldn’t tell her. Turns out, Edward had taken her to the desert and taken some
pictures, just a day before his death. ’We’re going to need to see those pictures’ Norman says.

Jenny says she can’t find the pictures. Basically, Edward had dropped the film with her and
she was going to develop them ’this morning’, but she couldn’t find them. ’It was like they just
vanished’ she says. Ralph asks Norman, if it is possible to get on the base and talk to a few of
Edward’s patients. Later while Ralph and Norman are driving to the base with Edward’s body,
their ambulance is cut off by another vehicle in the middle of the road. Two masked men, guns in
hand approach the ambulance and ask Ralph to hand over his gun. They are then asked to get
out of the ambulance. Jack later finds them walking down the road and is told that the gunmen
made off with the ambulance, with Edward’s body in it.

Ralph is later informed that, Edward had seen 14 patients of the 43rd Squadron, right before
his death. Turns out, the whole unit has flown out in the morning. At the base, Ralph finds a
Geiger counter in Edward’s room. They also find one of Edward’s patient reports, a Pvt. Jimmy
Seraski who was brought in with rashes and high fever. He died the next morning. Ralph figures
out that Jimmy was suffering from radiation poisoning. Ralph and Jack figure out that Edward
was killed because he found out about the radiation. From the report Ralph also finds out that,
Edward talked to Norman and told him everything that he knew.

Later, Ralph and Jack confront Norman about it. ’I didn’t kill him’ Norman says. ’But you
know who did’ Ralph says. Norman reveals it’s a defense company named Atrius that is working
on the base, on a top secret experiment, to prepare the base against a possible attack from
the Russians. Norman then reveals that the entire 43rd Squadron, were test subjects. Norman
says that Edward had come to him, so he could investigate how Jimmy had died of radiation
poisoning. ’I told him he was on his own’ Norman says. Norman admits he didn’t do anything to
stand in Atrius’s way, as he didn’t want to ’take the personal risk’. Ralph tells Norman, Edward
had taken autopsy pictures of Jimmy.

They were stolen, by the people who killed him. He asks Norman if he has some idea, as to
where those pictures might be. ’Atrius has a top secret bunker on the base’ Norman says. In
the bunker, Jack sees a photo of one of Edward’s patients and recognizes him, as a guy named
Massey, he had talked to earlier. Jack and Dixon then find Jimmy’s autopsy photographs. ’I’m
pretty sure this is what got Dozer killed’ Jack says. Laura figures out that Savino had a prior
relationship with Diana. ’I want her gone’ Laura tells Savino. ’So do I, more than you do. Rizzo’s
the boss, if he wants her here there is nothing anyone could do’ Savino says. Savino asks Laura
to trust him and says there is nothing between him and Diana. Laura says nothing, but doesn’t
look convinced.

Ralph confronts Massey and tells him he is a murderer. Ralph also mentions how the autopsy
pictures Edward took, prove this fact. Massey says even if Ralph were right he couldn’t do any-
thing, as ’the Sheriff of Clark County has no jurisdiction here’. ’I didn’t come here to arrest you,
I came here to inform you, exactly who it was who gave these to the newspapers’ Ralph says
waving the pictures in Massey’s face. Massey is worried to hear this and yells at Ralph saying
’you cannot leave the base with those’. ’Watch me’ says Ralph and drives out. Ralph soon finds
and Air force Police jeep giving him chase. A man from the jeep begins shooting at Ralph’s vehi-
cle. Eventually Ralph is overtaken and asked to get down from his vehicle by Massey, who was
driving the jeep.

His accomplice in the meantime holds a gun to Ralph’s face. Just then Jack arrives on the
scene with Norman and asks Massey’s accomplice to put his gun down. ’You are both under
arrest for the murder of Edward Dozer’ Ralph says. Massey reminds him he doesn’t have any
jurisdiction in the base. Ralph in turn points out that they are no more in the base. Basically,
Ralph ensured that he got Massey out of the base so he could be arrested. ’Welcome to Clark
County’ Ralph tells Massey with a smile. Laura meets up with Katherine and hints that she will
help Katherine take down Savino’s associates, as it will help Savino ’climb to the top’. Katherine
seems sold to the idea.

Jack meets up with Mia at the Savoy. ’Why don’t you come back another time when I am not
working?’ she tells him. ’That can be arranged’ Jack says with a smile. At his office, Ralph opens
a file with his wife Marilyn’s, death certificate in it. In the certificate it’s mentioned that she died
in a car accident, but the driver of the other vehicle wasn’t identified or found. It also mentions
that there is no suspicion of foul play.
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Masquerade

Season 1
Episode Number: 9
Season Episode: 9

Originally aired: Tuesday December 11, 2012
Writer: Jim Adler
Director: Paul McCrane
Show Stars: Dennis Quaid (Sheriff Ralph Lamb), Michael Chiklis (Johnny Savino),

Carrie-Anne Moss (Katherine O’Connell), Sarah Jones (II) (Mia Rizzo),
Taylor Handley (Dixon Lamb), Jason O’Mara (Jack Lamb)

Recurring Role: James Russo (Anthony ”Red” Cervelli), Aimee Garcia (Yvonne Sanchez)
Guest Stars: JB Blanc (Max Chandler), Jonno Roberts (Kerry Chase), Sandra McCoy

(Monique Morel), Jaimie Goodwin (Audrey Ballard), Gil Bellows (George
Grady), David Denman (Clay Stinson), Elizabeth Chomko (Chris Sten-
gel), Ronnie Gene Blevins (Todd Thurman), Mark Totty (Noah Ballard),
Benjamin John Parrillo (Dealer), Kathleen M. Darcy (Doris Kern)

Summary: Sheriff Lamb, Jack and Dixon investigate the murder of a young Vegas
showgirl. As the investigation proceeds, they begin to suspect that the
case hits close to home for Katherine. When the Savoy lands a whale,
Savino tries to use him to lure other high rollers into the casino.

The episode begins with a bunch of show-
girls performing onstage. The director
doesn’t seem happy with the performance
of the girls and tells them they lack pas-
sion and grace. He specifically tells one
of the girls named Audrey to pull up her
socks. At the Savoy, Mia tells Savino that
Johnny is in LA with Diane. Savino says
he has lured in a Texas oil tycoon to play
at the casino. He is hoping this will lead
to other bigwigs gambling at the casino.
Mayor Grady tells Ralph that he has a
new vision for Las Vegas. He wants the

city to welcome people and new businesses. Savino arrives and says he is there to take Grady to
dinner.

Audrey in the meantime is murdered by someone, while she is busy rehearsing alone in
an empty auditorium. Ralph and team find her body on the stage with her costume on and it
positioned to look as if she is sleeping. Ralph concludes the position the body was found in, is
really odd. Katherine concludes that Audrey was dressed in her costume after she was killed.
Audrey was strangled with a rope or a cord. Katherine also feels Audrey has been raped and
wants the body sent to the coroner for investigations. Max the director asks Jack as to when
he can have his stage back and is told by Jack that he can have it back once the murder is
solved. Max refuses to accept that. Jack finds out Max was threatening Audrey during her last
performance. Max says he was merely trying to motivate her.

Max also reveals he liked Audrey so much that when Audrey asked for a $300 advance, he
gave it to her. Clay the oil tycoon arrives at the Savoy. Savino is leaving no stone unturned to
keep Clay happy, so he becomes a regular patron of the casino. Jack finds out that Audrey was
raped. Clay wants to play a really big hand at one of the tables and Savino allows it. Clay ends
up winning the hand and is overjoyed. Ralph finds out from Audrey’s landlady that Audrey gave
notice last week that she is moving out. The landlady reveals that a guy named Todd had come
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by, when Audrey first moved in. Ralph sees the words ’you shall be forgiven’ scrawled on a mirror
in the bedroom. Clay tells Savino that he wants ’a night with Miss Rizzo’.

Savino says Clay has Mia ’pegged wrong’, but Clay argues that everybody has got a price. He
asks Savino to pass on his offer to Mia and see what she says. Savino later asks Red to make
sure Clay doesn’t leave the Savoy with the million dollars that he has won, but instead goes back
to the tables and loses it. Ralph concludes that Audrey was trying to get away from someone,
as she borrowed money and was planning to move. Ralph and team assume that it might have
something to do with the erotic magazine that Audrey had modeled for. Basically Ralph feels,
someone who saw Audrey in the magazine began stalking her. Katherine informs Ralph she has
found out from another county that, the words ’are we not blessed’ was scrawled next to another
woman who was murdered.

Audrey it turns out wasn’t the killer’s first victim. The victim’s name is Jenny Lester and she
was killed 2 years ago. Also, she too was a dancer at a bar. Dixon informs Ralph the erotic mag-
azine Audrey modeled for is owned by a guy named T.R. Thurman. Katherine is later informed
that Audrey’s father is a deacon and she is also given her family’s number and address. Savino is
pulling all stops to keep Clay and his guys at the Savoy. Todd Thurman is questioned by Ralph
and reveals he sent her father some pictures of Audrey. Ralph also finds out Todd has an alibi
and therefore couldn’t have murdered Audrey. Todd reveals that he sold a bunch of Audrey’s
mail order prints. Jack finds a record of the customers he sold the prints to.

Also, Audrey bought back her negatives from Todd for $300. Clay tells Savino that he is
leaving, as he wants to go ’before the thrill wears off’. Savino is visibly worried but says ’see you
again’. Katherine meets Audrey’s father Mr. Ballard who hands her an envelope and says this is
all he has now and whatever trouble Audrey is in, isn’t his concern. Just as he is about to leave
Katherine tells him, ’Audrey was murdered’. Ballard is emotional on hearing this but says Audrey
brought many bad things upon herself by her actions. ’Please don’t contact me again’ he tells
Katherine and leaves. In the envelope Katherine finds some money and a note. Ralph reads the
note in which Audrey has informed her father that she is moving. Clay in the meantime leaves
with his guys. He returns a little later and Savino welcomes him back.

Savino tells Mia that Clay had to return as there was a technical snag in the rail yard and
Clay always travels by train. ’Some things are out of our hands’ Savino tells her with a smirk.
Dixon finds out the address Audrey was planning to shift to, is leased to a man named Chris
Tangle. Jack and Ralph pay the address a visit and discover that Chris is a woman. Chris is in
tears when told Audrey has been murdered. Ralph figures out from his conversation with Chris
that she and Audrey were in love. ’Did anyone else know?’ he asks. ’No, we were very careful’
Chris replies. Chris also reveals Audrey stayed out late for rehearsals with someone from the
show, but she doesn’t know who it is.

Later, Ralph meets Mayor Grady and shows him the files on all the people who were friends
with Savino and are now dead. ’I would hate to start a file on you’ Ralph tells him. Grady is
visibly worried at Ralph’s suggestion. Clay on the other hand is back at the tables. Savino asks
Red how Clay is doing. Red says Clay is only playing small hands and isn’t really raising the
stakes. Mia comes in and informs Savino that Johnny is returning with Diane the next day, also
Clay has booked a chartered flight that will leaves in the next two hours. ’We can’t let him get on
that plane’ he tells Red and Mia. Katherine finds out Max had fled New York as he has assault
charges against him over there. He it turns out assaulted a few of the girls there, but none of the
girls reported it as they were scared.

Max is brought in for questioning and assures Ralph, he ’doesn’t mess around with dancers
anymore’. Max says he is innocent. Max also reveals that Audrey wrote the choreography for
a new number, but the music was written by someone else. Ralph asks Max as to who wrote
the music. Katherine in the meantime arrives to talk to Carey Chase, who wrote the music for
Audrey’s number. She pretends that she is there to ask about Max. While Carey leaves to get a
drink, Katherine sees that the words scrawled in Audrey’s bedroom and next to the other victim
are actually names of songs written by Carey. She sees the songs and their titles, scrawled on
papers, kept on Carey’s piano. ’You’ve been very helpful. We will talk again’ Katherine says and
begins to leave.

But, Carey catches her by the neck and begins strangling her with the rope he used to kill
Audrey. Katherine stabs him in the leg with his pen and makes goo her escape. She then hides
in the auditorium. Carey comes looking for her, knife in hand. He yells out to Katherine how he
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had feelings for Audrey but she turned him down, so he had to punish her, ’just like the others’.
Eventually Jack and Ralph arrive. Ralph shoots Carey and rescues Katherine.

Mia in the meantime has taken Clay up on his offer. Savino sees her playing high stakes poker
with Clay on one of the tables. Clay eventually loses to Mia, but assures her that he will be back
to play with her once again. Ralph and Jack later have some fun with Dixon, by scaring him with
a tarantula.
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Estinto

Season 1
Episode Number: 10
Season Episode: 10

Originally aired: Tuesday December 18, 2012
Writer: Vanessa Reisen, Nick Santora
Director: Anthony Hemingway
Show Stars: Dennis Quaid (Sheriff Ralph Lamb), Michael Chiklis (Johnny Savino),

Carrie-Anne Moss (Katherine O’Connell), Jason O’Mara (Jack Lamb),
Taylor Handley (Dixon Lamb), Sarah Jones (II) (Mia Rizzo)

Recurring Role: Michael Wiseman (Johnny Rizzo), Aimee Garcia (Yvonne Sanchez),
Michael Reilly Burke (D.A. Rich Reynolds)

Guest Stars: Vinessa Shaw (Laura Savino), Ivana Milicevic (Diane Desmond),
Grainger Hines (Del Merrick), D.B. Sweeney (Peter Holm), Jay Acov-
one (Nicky Tomisano), Tom Ayers (Moe Berman), Chauncey Jenkins
(Worker), Melinda Page Hamilton (Ginny), Brian Mulligan (Coroner),
Tzi Ma (Watanabe), Julia Fowler (Mrs. Tomisano), Christian Corp (Pas-
tor Amy Seger), Cameryn Jackie Cubeau (Older Savino Daugher), Tyler
Conti (Gospel Singer 1), Derrick Evans (Gospel Singer 2)

Summary: Dixon goes undercover at the Savoy after a series of robberies while
Sheriff Lamb and Jack investigate the death of the biggest contractor
in Las Vegas.

The episode begins and Ralph finds Jack
cleaning his vehicle. He also finds that
Jack has waxed and cleaned his vehicle.
Ralph knows why Jack has all of it and
teases him about it. Jack gets really de-
fensive and says he was simply tired of
driving around in a garbage can. Mia is
waiting for Johnny to arrive at the Savoy,
so they can spend Christmas together.
Savino is planning a night out with his
wife and kids. Johnny arrives and shocks
Mia by informing her that he is now en-
gaged to Diane. Diane hugs Mia and tells

her, they are going to be family. Savino too isn’t very happy with this decision of Johnny’s. Mia
sees Jack outside the Savoy.

Jack asks her out and opens the door of his pickup for her. She happily steps inside. Later,
the two are shown to be having a good time at a bar. Jack asks Mia to dance with him and
after initially protesting she agrees. Next day a body is found in a cement mixer, where the new
Tumbleweed is being built. Dell Merrick is the victim. He was the contractor entrusted with
building the Tumbleweed. Merrick’s assistant Pete tells Ralph that, Merrick had a dispute with
one of his clients the previous day. Pete elaborates that Savino and his men had paid Merrick
a visit, as they had an issue with Merrick overbilling them. ’They threatened his life’ Pete says.
At the Savoy Diane tells Savino that she wants him. Savino makes it clear to her that he isn’t
interested.

Diane doesn’t take a hint. Savino is therefore forced to be more emphatic in making his
point. ’Next time you have a problem, take it up with your fiancé’ he says before leaving. Later,
Ralph asks Savino about his issue with Dell Merrick. Savino says he and his men amicably
sorted out things with Merrick ’last night’ and also he needed Merrick to complete the job of the
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Tumbleweed. Therefore he had no reason to kill Merrick, he says. Savino also asks Ralph to look
into break-ins at the Savoy. He elaborates that he had $10,000 stolen from his storage room last
week. Ralph asks Dixon to go with Savino and look into the burglaries. At the coroner’s, Ralph is
shown an old injury on Merrick’s body which extends from his left shoulder to the right side of
his stomach. The coroner feels the wound was inflicted by a serrated knife.

Mrs. Merrick says he had suffered the injury at a construction site in Phoenix a few months
ago. It was a crane accident she says. Jack asks her if she is sure. ’Oh yes. He called me every
day from the hospital room in Phoenix’ she replies. Ralph, Jack and the coroner are sure the
injury is not from a crane accident. Ralph concludes somebody tried to kill Merrick before. At
the Savoy, Dixon after his inquiries concludes that the heists are being pulled by an employee.
He tells Savino about it. Dixon says he should go undercover as a waiter, so he can catch the
burglar red-handed. Savino is down with the idea and tells Dixon ’let’s get you a uniform’. Ralph
finds a letter sent to Merrick by a man named Hiroshi Watanabe.

In the letter addressed to Merrick, Hiroshi has mentioned how Merrick has ended his life
and his family’s. He also writes how he wants Merrick to die, for what he has done. Ralph and
Jack pay Watanabe a visit and tell him that they want to talk to him about Merrick’s murder.
Watanabe who seems to be a janitor, kicks the both of them hits them with a broomstick and
makes a run for it. The two eventually manage to catch him. He says he did not murder Merrick.
Ralph brings up the mention of the letter. ’I wrote that letter because Dell Merrick killed my
daughter’ Watanabe says. Watanabe explains that he and his family were located to a camp built
by Merrick. He says how he lost his home and his savings along with his 9-year-old daughter
who died of ’double pneumonia’.

As an act of revenge he took a knife and slashed Merrick’s chest one night. But, he saw real-
ization on Merrick’s face after he told Merrick what he had done to his family. He drove Merrick to
the hospital and even visited him there. ’Eventually we forgave each other for everything’ Watan-
abe says. Watanabe also reveals that Merrick’s wife picked him up at the hospital in Las Vegas
where he was admitted. Ralph is shocked to hear this as Mrs. Merrick has told him a completely
different story. Watanabe says Merrick’s wife had red hair. ’Jane Merrick doesn’t have red hair’
Jack says with a smile. Jack and Ralph find the red haired woman who Watanabe was talking
about.

Turns out, she is the wife of a mobster named Nicky Tommasano. ’He killed Dell, I know I am
next’ she tells them. Nicky is one of Savino’s guys and he tells Ralph he did not kill Merrick, as
he wanted Merrick to finish the construction of Tumbleweed as soon as possible. The red haired
woman in the meantime tells Jack that, Merrick had been seeing a woman named Amy Seeger.
They are later shocked to find out that Amy is a priest at a church. The DA informs Savino that,
Diane is working with the feds. ’She is here to get info to take you down. To take you all down’
the DA tells Savino. Amy tells Ralph and Jack how she saved Merrick after he was stabbed. She
showed him the path of god. She reveals that Merrick hated himself for building casinos in the
desert, as he believed it was devil’s work.

Amy says Merrick was planning to shut his business within a year so he could devote his life
to god. Dixon finds Savino’s thief and informs Savino about it. Savino is impressed that Dixon
managed to catch the thief so soon. Ralph finds out that Jane knew about Merrick’s plan to
give everything he had to Amy. He asks Jane if she was fine with it. She honestly admits she
wasn’t fine with it, but had assumed Merrick would grow tired of Amy ’soon enough’, as he had
of numerous other women he had relationships with. Jack has a chat with Pete Holm, who was
also Merrick’s partner in business. Jack fathoms that Holm wasn’t happy with Merrick’s plan of
wanting to hand over everything he had to Amy. At the station Ralph and Jack debate as to who
the culprit is. Jack feels it’s Holm but Ralph feels its Jane Merrick. It ends in a fight with both
raking up personal issues.

Savino confronts Diane and says he knows she is working for the FBI. He asks her to leave
by the next morning and says he never wants to see her around ever again. Jack and Ralph
conclude that both Mrs. Merrick and Holm worked together to murder Dell Merrick. Jack and
Ralph figure that Merrick’s body was carried by Mrs. Merrick and Pete Holm and thrown into
the cement mixture, which is why Mrs. Merrick has an injury on her left hand and Pete Holm on
his right. Ralph later gets the two to admit to the crime. Later, Jack meets Mia at a suite in the
Savoy. She tells him they can’t see each other anymore as it’s too dangerous, but Jack pays no
heed to it and kisses her.
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The two begin stripping each other’s clothes and kissing passionately. Savino is summoned by
Johnny and the moment he enters he is shocked to see Diane lying dead on the couch. A syringe
is stuck to her arm. Johnny seems unperturbed and tells Savino it’s a shame she is dead. ’Once
a junkie always a junkie’ Johnny says and leaves. Savino is visibly shocked to see her dead.
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Paiutes

Season 1
Episode Number: 11
Season Episode: 11

Originally aired: Tuesday January 8, 2013
Writer: Greg Walker, Steven Levenson
Director: Christine Moore (III)
Show Stars: Dennis Quaid (Sheriff Ralph Lamb), Michael Chiklis (Vincent Savino),

Carrie-Anne Moss (Katherine O’Connell), Jason O’Mara (Jack Lamb),
Taylor Handley (Dixon Lamb), Sarah Jones (II) (Mia Rizzo)

Recurring Role: Sonny Marinelli (Nick ”Beansy” Cota), Vinessa Shaw (Laura Savino),
Michael Wiseman (Johnny Rizzo), Aimee Garcia (Yvonne Sanchez),
Michael Reilly Burke (D.A. Rich Reynolds)

Guest Stars: Chris Tardio (Hal Whitford), Michael Harney (Leo Farwood), Stephen
Taylor (Nathan Auster), RJ Mitte (Russ Auster), Michael Ironside
(Porter Gainsley), Lily Knight (Doris Auster), Elizabeth Penn Payne
(Maureen Farwood), Bob Stephenson (Fred LaForge), Dan O’Connor
(Doug Forbes), Taryn O’Neill (Margie LaForge)

Summary: Sheriff Lamb is kidnapped by a suspect bent on revenge, and is forced
to dig his own grave. Meanwhile, Savino and Rizzo are roughed up by
a rival mob and must come up with a deal quickly to try to save their
lives, and Katherine and Laura embark on a new partnership.

The episode begins with Ralph driving
down a deserted road while listening to
the radio. He stops in front of a bank and
knocks on its door. Just then a couple
of guys arrive and knock him out cold.
The scene then flashes back to 58 hours
earlier. At the station a man named Fred
enters with a shot gun and points it at
Dixon. He says Dixon has been fooling
around with his wife Marge. Is that true?
Ralph asks Dixon. Dixon awkwardly ad-
mits that it is. Ralph calms down Fred
and manages to get him to lower his gun.

He promises that Dixon and he shall have a long, long talk about this issue. Ralph keeps the
gun and promises to return it Fred in week, when he has calmed down.

He then asks Dixon to drop Fred and his wife Marge home and on the way suggests they settle
their differences. Jack on the other hand is in Mia’s bed. They have spent the night together and
are busy flirting even in the morning. Mia tells Jack she hasn’t figured out his angle yet, but
Jack assures her he doesn’t have one. Mia though, isn’t convinced. The banker comes to Savino
and asks him where the money is. He specifies that he is asking about the first installment of
$275,000 that Savino was given for the Tumbleweed. He tells Savino that he just came from the
bank and Savino’s accounts are emptied out. Savino is shocked to hear this. The banker named
Forwent is angry, because Savino hasn’t started construction as yet, but has already used up
half the loan.

Savino assures him that, no one has touched the money and whatever it is he’ll fix it. Don’t
make me look like a fool the banker says and leaves. Back in the present, Ralph is unconscious
and his hands are tied, he is lying in the back of a vehicle and is being driven to someplace.
The scene then flashes back to 56 hours earlier. Savino asks Johnny about the money and he
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says he has sent it to Chicago, where it’s being loaned out to people for a high interest. Savino
reminds him that the money was for the Tumbleweed. Johnny retorts that they will arrange for
more money, for the Tumbleweed. Johnny suggests that they will go to another bank for the
money and also he will talk to Forwent. Savino doesn’t like it, but keeps quiet.

Katherine meets Laura and asks her to help her, prove that Johnny killed Diane Desmond.
This would also in turn prove that Savino is innocent, she tells Laura. Ralph and Jack arrive at
a bar where a deputy named Howard was sent to check out some disturbance. Ralph is told the
deputy is incommunicado and hence Ralph and Jack arrive at the bar searching for him. Inside
they see two armed men have taken the deputy and another man hostage. The men let the deputy
go, but take the other guy with them to the back of the bar. The men pour someone alcohol on
the guy and set him on fire. They then get away. One of the guys comments on how the hostage
deserves this. Jack and Ralph hear the man yelling and rush to the back. They manage to put
out the fire, but discover that the men have escaped. Back in the present the vehicle comes to a
halt and Ralph is dragged out of it.

Flashback to 36 hours earlier and at the station Jack informs Ralph that one of the men is
a guy named Nathan Ouster, who has a past criminal history and was arrested for holding up a
liquor store in Nevada. Ralph later finds out from Nathan’s mother that the guy who was Nathan,
was Nathan’s little brother Russ. She tells Ralph that Russ is a good boy and Nathan has been a
bad influence on him. Jack and Ralph figure out that Nathan and Russ are picking bars to rob,
which they think did wrong by their father who was a drunk and is now dead. Ralph believes
Nathan is simply using the injustice bit as an excuse to rile Russ up, so he helps him rob the
bars. Ralph figures out that Nathan and Russ might try to loot the cement factory, where their
father used to work and was fired from, for coming to work drunk.

Nathan and Russ are then apprehended by Jack and Ralph, right before they are about to rob
the factory. Nathan begins shooting at them and gets shot in the leg, while at it. He falls to the
ground helpless. Russ in the meantime, escapes in his car. Nathan tries shooting Ralph with his
shotgun and Ralph has no option but to shoot him in the chest. Johnny has a chat with Forwent
and asks Forwent to talk to him from now on, if he has any problems. Forwent is visibly terrified
on coming face to face with Johnny and assures Johnny that he will toe the line from now on.
Back in the present, Ralph wakes up and finds himself in a small room. Flashback to 10 hours
earlier and Katherine comes into Ralph’s office and tells him that she has found out, Johnny
might have killed Diane with an overdose of heroine.

This evidence might be enough for the DA to wiretap Savino, Johnny and the Savoy, Katherine
says. She hopes the DA will say a yes to the wiretapping. The DA tells Katherine that he can’t
go ahead and order the wiretap until he knows who her source is. Katherine says he can’t reveal
that as she has made her source a promise that she wouldn’t reveal the name. The DA says
that, he has to make sure Katherine’s source is credible. Katherine argues that if they don’t do
something, the feds will take over the case. The DA isn’t too happy to hear this and looks worried.
Russ gives Ralph a call at the station. ’I’m coming for you as soon as the time is right’ Russ tells
Ralph. Russ is livid that Ralph has killed his brother.

Ralph tries talking reason with Russ, but Russ wants to hear none of it. In the end, Ralph tells
him that he will be waiting for him. Savino and Johnny arrive outside Forwent’s house which is
outside town. They have been invited there by Forwent. The two, ring the doorbell but there is
no answer. They turn around and see a bunch of armed men standing in front of them. Forwent
has summoned the armed men and he too arrives a little later. Ralph in the meantime has been
kidnapped by Russ, while on his way to meet Katherine. Jack and Dixon figure this out, as they
find Ralph’s abandoned truck and bloodstains on the road. They immediately decide to begin
searching for Ralph. Howe Whitford a man who was caught cheating at the Savoy, was caught
by Jack but made bail earlier in the day.

Ralph was on his way to the bank to return the money Howe had won. Jack concludes it
could have also been Howe who kidnapped Ralph for the money, as Mia tells Jack Howe was
accused of killing a few security guards a few months back. They decide to go to Howe’s ranch
to check out if Ralph is there. Johnny and Savino in the meantime are tied to a chair and are
being serviced by Forwent and his colleagues, who it turns out, are the board members of the
bank. Savino to save their lives offers the Tumbleweed to his captors. Johnny isn’t happy with
the deal Savino is making, but keeps mum. The deal offered seems to appeal to the men. Savino
even offers to run the Tumbleweed for them.
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Jack arrives at Howe’s ranch and manages to kill him, right before he is about to kill Ralph.
Savino and Johnny are, back home safe and sound, but Johnny isn’t happy about the Tumble-
weed. Ralph on the other hand is in the hospital, but is fine, except for a few bruises.
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From This Day Forward

Season 1
Episode Number: 12
Season Episode: 12

Originally aired: Tuesday January 15, 2013
Writer: Seth Hoffman, Nick Santora
Director: James Whitmore Jr.
Show Stars: Dennis Quaid (Sheriff Ralph Lamb), Michael Chiklis (Vincent Savino),

Carrie-Anne Moss (Katherine O’Connell), Jason O’Mara (Jack Lamb),
Taylor Handley (Dixon Lamb), Sarah Jones (II) (Mia Rizzo)

Recurring Role: James Russo (Anthony ”Red” Cervelli), Vinessa Shaw (Laura Savino),
Michael Wiseman (Johnny Rizzo), Aimee Garcia (Yvonne Sanchez),
Michael Reilly Burke (D.A. Rich Reynolds)

Guest Stars: Frances O’Connor (Barbara Kent), Dan Warner (Deputy), Amy Lan-
decker (Karen Schultz), Samuel Ball (Max Voorhees), Alexandra Holden
(Dawn Fields), Jade Tailor (Crystal Le Croix), Charles Halford (Tony
Byrd), Robert Gant (Rick), Pernille Trojgaard (Secretary Ildy), Eddie
Alfano (Lonnie Mills), Guy Nardulli (Paul Zummo)

Summary: The entire Lamb family is blindsided when a former flame of Sheriff
Lamb’s shows up asking for help in finding the man who beat up her
husband. Meanwhile, Savino confronts the snitch inside his casino
and deals with it in a startling way.

The episode begins with Jack hiding un-
der Mia’s bed, as Johnny is paying her
a visit. Mia suggests they have breakfast
in his room and Johnny agrees. Johnny
leaves and Mia tells Jack they have 20
minutes till the breakfast arrives. The
two, decide to make good use of that time
and begin making out. Later at the sta-
tion Dixon and Jack aren’t too happy to
see a woman named Barbara sitting in
Ralph’s office. Turns out, she and Ralph
were dating at one point, and then she
left him for a rich man. Ralph enters
and sees Barbara in his office. He seems

happy to see her. She tells Ralph she is town with her husband Rick.
She then tells him that last night some men assaulted Rick and stole $5000 from him. Barbara

wanted to report the attack last night but Rick refused. I just think he doesn’t like the idea of
asking my old boyfriend for help she says. Dixon gets a call about a body that has been found
and leaves to check it out with Jack, and without telling Ralph, as he is busy. The body is that
of a woman, but there is no identification on her. They see the woman wearing the uniform of a
divorce ranch, specifically meant for divorced women. The DA tells Savino that Johnny’s phone is
soon going to be tapped, as the authorities are looking for a clue to Diane’s death. A confidential
informant has been feeding information to one of my ADAs the DA says. The DA feels the rat has
to be someone from Savino’s organization.

Savino says he will find the rat himself and take care of him. Dixon and Jack arrive at the
divorce ranch and meet its owner Karen and her wrangler Max. Karen tells them the victim’s
name is Marjorie and she was a guest at the ranch. Turns out, Marjorie was divorced twice and
was on the way to being divorced the third time. Matt says a woman from the ranch named Dawn
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was last seen with Marjorie. They go to Dawn’s room and find it in complete disarray. It seems
as if Dawn left in an awful hurry. From a file of criminals Barbara recognizes one of them as the
person who assaulted Rick. The criminal’s name is Paul and he it seems is a loan shark. Mia in
the meantime introduces Jack to Johnny as her boyfriend.

Jack tells Johnny he loves his daughter but is never going to trust Johnny, just like Johnny is
never going to trust him. So for Mia’s sake, I say we call a truce Jack says. Dad I need you to do
this for me Mia tells Johnny. We’ll talk about this later he says and walks away. Ralph questions
Paul, who tells him that Rick pawned him a fake diamond bracelet in return for $2000, which
is why he roughed Rick up a little. Ralph then takes the $5000 Paul stole and leaves. A visibly
livid Johnny asks Savino to fire Mia but doesn’t give him a reason for it. He also asks Savino to
not tell Mia that she has been fired on his instructions. Jack and Dixon find Dawn, who tells
her Marjorie and she were playing a game of bingo where each of them had to complete different
tasks.

Marjorie couldn’t complete one on the bingo list, which was to pretend to be a working girl’.
Dixon and Jack take the list and leave. The two then find out that while pretending to be a
working girl, Marjorie had last met up with a guy named Tony who has assaulted her. They catch
up with Tony and question him. He says he assaulted her only so she wouldn’t work on his turf.
They find Marjorie’s purse in his car. There is a cash transfer slip in her purse for $25,000, from 4
days ago. Dixon feels the cash might have had something to do with her being murdered. Savino
in the meantime is desperately trying to find out who the rat is. Savino through his investigations
then finds out that Laura is the rat. He confronts her about it and she tells him she did it only
to keep him safe.

Savino tells her, as soon as Johnny figures out what Laura did; she and he along with their
kids would all be dead. Katherine says she can help us disappear Laura says. Savino is outraged
at the suggestion and says he is not a rat and will never be a rat. Laura tells Savino she agrees
with what he is saying but she doesn’t have another plan do you Vincent? she asks. Later, Savino
meets Katherine and tells her his wife is done talking to her. Ralph has a talk with Rick and he
admits he is having money troubles. They discuss about Barbara and Rick admits that she could
never forget Ralph despite being with him. Savino fires Mia and tells her she did nothing wrong,
just that Chicago wants to make a change. Does this have anything to do with me and Jack?
asks a livid Mia.

Savino skirts the question and says he has other business to attend to. Savino later tells Red
that the whole case would go away if Johnny wasn’t around. He says he is sick of cleaning after
Johnny. Savino feels there has to be some way he could deal with the problem that Johnny is
becoming. Mia on the other hand confronts Johnny, who tells her that Jack isn’t right for her.
Mia is really agitated with him and gives him a piece of her mind. She tells Johnny she has set
up an interview with another casino in Vegas. She makes it clear to Johnny that, she will neither
leave Vegas nor will she leave Jack. Dixon finds out that Marjorie had bought a piece of land for
$25000 and had signed it over to Max the wrangler, hours before her death. Dixon feels Max got
what he wanted from Marjorie and then killed her.

Barbara kisses Ralph and bids him goodbye. Jack and Dixon confront Max. He reveals to
them that the land Marjorie had signed over in his name was probably a wedding present from
her to him, as they were soon going to get hitched. Jack comments on how one of the girls in the
ranch would have mentioned if they were getting married. Margie did not want the other girls to
know Max says. She felt it would make the other girls upset to know she was getting married,
Max tells the two. He shows the two a letter Marjorie had written him the night of the death.
They notice the signatures on the letter and on the land document don’t match. They conclude
that whoever wrote the letter, must have wanted to get Marjorie alone.

Dixon notices the letter is written on ranch stationery. They question ranch owner Karen
about it. Jack suggests she killed Marjorie as she was jealous of the fact that Max and Marjorie
were getting married, as Karen herself has begun to like Max. Karen in the end with tears in her
eyes confesses to the crime. At the Savoy, Savino tells Johnny that Mia is the rat. Savino says he
has proof to that effect.

Savino suggests that Jack has put Mia up to this. Johnny in anger says he is going to go
after Jack. Savino plans to have Jack kill Johnny, by informing Jack about Johnny’s intentions.
Savino later sends Laura back to Chicago for her own safety.
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Road Trip

Season 1
Episode Number: 13
Season Episode: 13

Originally aired: Tuesday January 29, 2013
Writer: Nick Santora
Director: Frederick E.O. Toye
Show Stars: Dennis Quaid (Sheriff Ralph Lamb), Michael Chiklis (Vincent Savino),

Carrie-Anne Moss (Katherine O’Connell), Jason O’Mara (Jack Lamb),
Taylor Handley (Dixon Lamb), Sarah Jones (II) (Mia Rizzo)

Recurring Role: James Russo (Anthony ”Red” Cervelli), Sonny Marinelli (Nick ”Beansy”
Cota), Michael Wiseman (Johnny Rizzo)

Guest Stars: Damon Herriman (Mr. Jones), Lili Simmons (Fay), Dustin Seavey
(Deputy Roberts), Keith Barber (Rancher), Anna Jacoby-Heron (Anna),
Doug Savant (Mr. Binder), Ursula Brooks (Mrs. Binder), Lindsey Gort
(Ginny Binder), Casey McCarthy (Ms. Grady), Jon Sklaroff (Patchy),
Dante Swain (Kolbsy), Alex Reznik (Doctor), David St. Pierre (Civilian),
Drew James (Punk Biker 1), Adam Bartley (Robbie Reuben), Doug Sin-
clair (II) (Attendant), Sean Lien (Deputy), Carter Hastings (Child in Car)

Summary: Jack is in dire trouble when he’s blindsided by Mia’s father, Rizzo,
who wants to grill him about his daughter. Meanwhile, Dixon saves
a drowning girl and discovers she was poisoned, and Savino and his
Savoy crew find themselves stranded in the desert overnight.

The episode begins with Dixon flirting
with a girl near a swimming pool. Just
then he hears someone yelling that a girl
is drowning. He rushes to rescue the girl.
The girl is taken out of the pool and Dixon
tries to revive her. At the station Kather-
ine questions a handcuffed Jones. She
tells him he is sure to go to the gas cham-
ber for his crimes, but she can instead of-
fer him life if he talks. She wants to know
who he has worked with and what he was
told and has heard especially about Vin-
cent Savino. Jones tells her he had his
teeth broken and loosened while fighting
with inmates and he wants proper dental
care in return for what Katherine wants.

They then shake on it. Mia and Jack are still dating. She tells him how she lost her job at
the Savoy because she is seeing him. She leaves for an interview at a casino which is the Savoy’s
rival. Savino sees Jack leave the Savoy and approaches him to warn him about Johnny, who
is out for his blood. Jack is baffled as to why Savino is helping him. Savino explains that dead
cops are bad for business. Savino then leaves with his men to collect a bunch of smuggled slot
machines he has ordered in the middle of the desert, so no one notices. At the hospital, Dixon
meets the father of the girl Fey whose life he saved. The father’s name is Connie Bender and he
introduces Dixon to the rest of his family. Turns out, they are a family of famous musicians and
Dixon is a fan.

The doctor arrives and tells Dixon and the family that Fey is now out of danger and adds
that Fey was actually poisoned, but the water saved her life as it diluted the poison in her body.
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Savino’s car breaks down in the middle of the desert and he and his men have no option but to
walk. Ralph and Dixon talk to Fey, who says she was by the pool right before the incident and
had eaten something before diving into the pool. The next thing she remembers is waking up in
the hospital. Jack informs Ralph and Dixon that a chemical test revealed, rat poison in the food
Fey ate. The manager has revealed that a sketchy looking fellow was looking for a job the day
the incident took place. Husky, brown hair, glasses is how the manager descried the fellow. Fey
and Dixon later get better acquainted and then get hot and heavy. At the prison Jones’s teeth
are taken care of. Basically, he gets braces.

Jones uses those braces to un-cuff himself. He then shoots the guard escorting him back to
his cell and drives off in a prison van. Savino and his men on the other hand hitch a ride from a
local. Dixon finds out that a comic named Robbie is a huge fan of Fey’s and has been following
her around for years. Dixon asks her if he is husky, with brown hair and glasses. He is Fey says
visibly surprised. Dixon makes some inquires and finds out Robbie, is in Vegas. Katherine tells
Ralph they have to find Jones come heaven or high-water. Savino and his guys are at the shop
owned by the local and his daughter. Just then a bunch of bikers arrive and bother the man for
money. Savino and his men intervene and point guns at the bikers. They shoot in the air and
scare the bikers off. At the station Dixon questions Robbie.

He says he was there at the kitchen during the day of the incident but didn’t poison the food.
He simply wanted to collect the order ticket for the food she and her family had ordered. He then
shows Dixon how he has over the years collected stuff related to Fey. He even shows Dixon the
copy of Fey and her family’s most recent music contract. Dixon sees that there is no signature
line for Fey. Robbie feels that it means Fey is about to begin her solo career. Dixon locks up
Robbie till he can get to the bottom of things. Jack on the hand is set up and finds a gun pointed
at his neck from behind, by Johnny. Katherine and Ralph conclude that Jones is on his way to
Mexico and try following his trail. Jack in the meantime is tied to a chair and Johnny asks him
what he got Mia to spill to the ADA.

Jack is surprised to hear this and denies doing any such thing. Johnny doesn’t believe him
and basically says that Jack is a dead man. Jack maintains that he is telling him the truth.
Johnny decides to use a different method to persuade Jack to blurt out the truth. He is basi-
cally planning to torture Jack. Dixon confronts Mr. Bender with the copy of the contract. Mia is
shocked to find out that her name isn’t on the contract. Her father tells her theirs is a family act
hence there is no place for a girl in it that smokes pot and drinks. Fey is livid and lashes out at
her parents. Her father makes it clear to Fey that she is out of the band. Dixon asks Fey to grab
her food so he and she can sit together and talk. She says the meal that has been ordered is a
chef’s salad which has eggs in it, which she doesn’t like.

She decides to not have it and retires to her room alone. Savino and his men at long last make
it to the location where the truck with the smuggled slot machines is hidden. They discover the
slot machines are in French and the plugs are different. They don’t pay the guy who brought
them and instead take his car and leave. Ralph and Katherine in the meantime catch up with
Jones, who makes a getaway in a car after he points a gun at the driver. Jones then turns around
and sees there is a little boy sitting in the backseat of the car. Jones in the end abandons the
car and runs of foot. Katherine and Ralph rescue the child from the abandoned vehicle. Johnny
is busy torturing Jack to get information out of him, but to no avail. Jack tells Johnny, he has
been lied to and set up.

Jack is confident about this, because Johnny mentions a date and time when Mia supposedly
met the ADA, but at that time he and Mia were together in a hotel. He asks Johnny to call up
the manager of the hotel and confirm what he is saying. Dixon in the meantime figures out that
Mia is the one who tried to poison her sister Ginny. Basically, mayo was found in Mia’s system
but she doesn’t like mayo, so in other words she mistakenly had the poisoned sandwich she
had ordered for Ginny. Basically, both the sandwiches the one she ordered for herself and Ginny
looked the same, which confused her. She in the end admits her crime and says she wanted to
make Ginny sick so she would miss the tour and then people could see how talented she (Fey)
was. Dixon is unmoved and arrests her.

Savino and his guys on the way back see Jones trying to hitch a ride. Savino stops the car,
gets down and points a gun at him. Savino’s men beat up Jones, but Savino spares his life and
tells him you work for me now. Johnny figures out that Savino lied to him. Jack in the meantime
frees himself and overpowers Johnny, Jack then points a gun at him. Johnny too gets his hands
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on a gun, but before he can make his move, Jack shoots him. Johnny drops to the ground dead.
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The Third Man

Season 1
Episode Number: 14
Season Episode: 14

Originally aired: Tuesday February 5, 2013
Writer: Jim Adler, Vanessa Reisen
Director: Matt Earl Beesley
Show Stars: Dennis Quaid (Sheriff Ralph Lamb), Michael Chiklis (Vincent Savino),

Carrie-Anne Moss (Katherine O’Connell), Jason O’Mara (Jack Lamb),
Taylor Handley (Dixon Lamb), Sarah Jones (II) (Mia Rizzo)

Recurring Role: James Russo (Anthony ”Red” Cervelli), Sonny Marinelli (Nick ”Beansy”
Cota), Michael Wiseman (Johnny Rizzo)

Guest Stars: Enver Gjokaj (Tommy Stone), John Lloyd Young (Nicky Fontaine),
Vanessa Dubasso (Swedish Tourist 1), Jason Gerhardt (Pete Everson),
Dustin Seavey (Deputy Roberts), Anne Leighton (Vera), Joshua Biton
(Eddie Wilson), Travis Aaron Wade (Paul Dugget), Alexandra Lydon
(Shelly Everson), Caitlin Carmichael (Geena Everson), Casey McCarthy
(Junkie/Myrna Callum), Adam O’Byrne (Mike Netter)

Summary: Jack needs to break devastating news to Mia, while he hides crucial
information from her and his brother Ralph.

The episode begins with a guy singing
on a stage, in the bar in Savoy. Tommy
Stone, a guy in the audience, tells Savino
he made a smart move by hiring the
singer named Nicky Fontaine. Turns out,
Tommy works in a nearby casino called
the Hacienda. Savino decides to hire
Fontaine for the next year, while he can
still get him cheap. Jack in the meantime,
is cleaning up after all that has taken
place. He sees the marks of torture on his
body and is worried. He again enters the
room where Johnny is lying dead on the
floor. He picks up his gun and makes it
out in a hurry. Dixon on the other hand

sees a black Thunderbird speeding on the roads of Vegas and gives chase. He catches up with
the speeding vehicle and sees that the driver is a guy called Pete, who he knows.

At the station, Pete tells Dixon, how he knocked up his girlfriend Shelly and then got married
to her, thus giving up his brilliant academic career. Pete then got a job as a mechanic. He fondly
talks about his 6-year-old daughter named Gina. Turns out, Pete was stealing the car he was in,
as he desperately needs the money. Pete admits he isn’t operating on his own. He volunteers the
information that the guy he steals the cars for sells them in LA. He also tells Dixon that there
will be a drag race the next night and the guy will be there. Jack meets Mia and tells her that
Johnny is dead. He lies that he doesn’t know who killed him and says he heard the news on the
police radio. Jack arrives at Savino’s office and accuses him of setting him up.

Savino figures out that Jack has killed Johnny. He talks some sense into Jack by telling him
that, it is beneficial for both of them to keep their mouths shut. Ralph and Katherine on the other
hand investigate Rizzo’s death. Ralph figures out that Johnny was holding someone captive and
the person got away. Jack, who is also at the scene, is visibly worried that Katherine and Ralph
are rapidly figuring out all that took place there. Katherine concludes the person who was being
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held captive by Johnny, was Savino. She feels Johnny found out about the rat she had in the
organization and Savino’s connection to the rat. Mia is later called for questioning. Katherine
suggests to her that it might have been Savino who killed Johnny.

Mia asks Katherine if she has evidence to support her theory. ’I’m not at liberty to say’ Kather-
ine tells her. Mia in turn assumes Katherine does have some evidence proving Savino is complicit.
Jack sees Mia to her car. She asks him if Savino was responsible for Johnny’s death. Jack says
he doesn’t know. Later, Dixon tells Ralph about his plan to go undercover as a mechanic, so
he can nab the car thieves with Pete’s help. Savino in the meantime is livid when he finds out
Tommy from the Hacienda has hired Nicky for a higher price than he was offering him. Dixon
arrives at the drag race, as an undercover mechanic. Pete assures him, the guy will soon be
there. The race begins and Pete is one of the racers.

Suddenly during the race, Pete’s car springs a mechanical fault, loses control and crashes
into a car, parked nearby. Due to the impact, Pete’s vehicle immediately bursts into flames.
Later, Dixon returns from the hospital and informs Ralph that Pete is out of surgery and the
doctors have said he will ’pull through’. Dixon feels Pete’s vehicle was sabotaged because he is
cooperating with the law. Ralph and Dixon later discover that Pete’s car was sabotaged, just as
Dixon had suspected. Ralph and Dixon conclude that all the mechanics working at the garage
where Pete also works are a part of the ’stolen car ring’. Ralph manages to get his hands on the
number the receptionist at the garage call on, when Pete and the other mechanics disappear for
hours.

Jack pays Mia a visit. She still hasn’t gotten over Johnny’s death. She says Savino has offered
her, her old job back. She is thinking of taking him up on his offer. She says she has to find out
who the killer of her father is and feels that if it’s Savino, there couldn’t be a better way to confirm
it, than staying close to him by working for him. Jack says it’s too dangerous and asks her to not
take the job. Savino is informed by Red that, the bosses won’t send anyone to replace Johnny,
till they keep earning their money. Ralph and Dixon find out, the number Ralph got earlier, is
the number of a shipping company that went ’belly up’ last year. Ralph and Dixon arrive at the
shipping company. Turns out, it’s the hideout for the car thieves.

They manage to nab one of the mechanics named Eddie, who they met at the garage earlier.
Mia tells Savino she wants to be head of casino operations. After a bit of contemplation, Savino
agrees to Mia’s request. ’You got the job. I can’t think of a better right hand’ he tells her. Savino
is later called in for questioning, by Katherine. Jack is visibly worried to see him there. Katherine
tells Savino that Johnny’s death might have ’temporarily shut the door’ to her investigations, but
warns Savino that his ’day of reckoning is still coming’. Katherine gives him one last chance to
repent, by confessing to Johnny’s murder. She threatens to reveal to Chicago that Lauren was
her informant, if Savino doesn’t comply.

Savino is visibly worried to hear this, but doesn’t break. He tells Katherine she doesn’t have
the guts to do what she is threatening to do and walks out. Later at the Savoy, Savino decides
to deal with Tommy, from the Hacienda, who is poaching on all his entertainers. Katherine tells
Jack and Ralph that Rizzo was killed with his own gun, according to the coroner’s report. In
other words, the fingerprints of the murderer would be on the gun. She says they will find out by
’tomorrow’ about the fingerprints. Jack is really worried to hear this. Dixon finds out, Pete was
stealing cars, so he could prove to the judge that he had the money to take care of his daughter,
after divorcing his wife.

Dixon figures, Pete’s wife must have tampered with Pete’s car so she could get sole custody of
their daughter. They question Pete’s wife who is now living with her new boyfriend. She denies
tampering with Pete’s car. Ralph questions the boyfriend, while Dixon is chatting with Pete’s
wife. Ralph while chatting with the guy hints that he might have something to do with Pete’s car
being sabotaged. The guy realizes Ralph is on to him and attacks Ralph. Ralph fends off the guy’s
attack and manages to subdue him. Savino on the other hand hires Tommy as his entertainment
director, as he sees potential in him. Pete is given the custody of his daughter and also told that
the DA won’t be pressing charges.

Jack in the meantime, switches his fingerprints in the file being sent to the FBI with someone
else’s, so they don’t match the ones on Johnny’s gun. Later, Mia tells Jack, she is taking Savino’s
offer. Jack is worried about Mia’s safety, but Mia assures him she will be fine. ’Don’t trust
anybody’ he tells her. ’You are the only man I trust’ she in turn says.
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Two of a Kind

Season 1
Episode Number: 15
Season Episode: 15

Originally aired: Tuesday February 19, 2013
Writer: Jessica Queller, Steven Levenson
Director: Jerry Levine
Show Stars: Michael Chiklis (Vincent Savino), Dennis Quaid (Sheriff Ralph Lamb),

Carrie-Anne Moss (Katherine O’Connell), Jason O’Mara (Jack Lamb),
Taylor Handley (Dixon Lamb), Sarah Jones (II) (Mia Rizzo)

Recurring Role: Sonny Marinelli (Nick ”Beansy” Cota)
Guest Stars: Enver Gjokaj (Tommy Stone), Shawn Doyle (Patrick Byrne), Anna

Camp (Violet Mills), Paul Ben-Victor (Abe Silver), Dustin Seavey
(Deputy Roberts), Mark Harelik (Dr. Herman Thrane), Rosie Benton
(Helen Lattimer), Marika Dominczyk (Nadia Lattimer), Gene Farber
(Tamas), Todd Robert Anderson (Director), Paul Elia (A.D.), Adrienne
Whitney (Girl), Scott Vance (Man), Joel Gelman (Jimmy), Sheila Shaw
(Sandy Cooperman), David Damiani (Singer), Colleen Craig (Dancer 1),
Mallauri Esquibel (Dancer 2), Jillian Schmitz (Dancer 3), Kherington
Payne (Dancer 4), Kayla Kalbfleisch (Dancer 5)

Summary: Savino, Mia and Tommy have their hands full when a Hollywood pro-
ducer and his ingÃ c©nue, Violet, breeze into the Savoy. When Tommy
finds himself over his head when tasked by Savino to keep an eye on
Violet, he hires a very willing Dixon to shadow the starlet.

The episode begins with Jack coming out
of the shower and looking at the injuries
that were inflicted by Rizzo on his body.
Later Jack, Ralph and Dixon arrive at a
crime scene. A man was found dead in his
car with the engine still running. Turns
out, he was shot in the head. Ralph con-
cludes whoever shot the man knew him,
because the man pulled his car to the
side of the road and rolled down his win-
dow for the killer. Also, it doesn’t look like
a robbery because the man’s wallet and
watch are still on him. The victim’s name
according to his license is Burt Ladamer;
there are also a series of numbers written

on a piece of paper found in his wallet.
The trunk of his car is stacked with crates of health shakes. Savino in the meantime sends the

’skim’ to Chicago. The skim is hidden underneath some clothes in a suitcase. It changes hands
a couple of times before an old woman picks it up and sits in a plane. She is apprehended by the
FBI, and the bundles of cash underneath the clothes in the suitcase, is discovered. At the Savoy,
Savino chats with a man named Patrick Burn, who is from Washington. Burn reveals that he is
from the FBI. Burn informs Savino that his skim money has been apprehended. Burn says from
now on not a dime will make it to Chicago and he knows that will make guys in Chicago really
unhappy. Savino looks worried on hearing all that Burn had to say.

Later, Barry Silver, a famous Hollywood producer, pays the Savoy a visit. Savino tells Mia,
Barry is shooting a Western in the desert and it was Tommy’s idea to host Silver and his pro-
duction at the Savoy. Ralph and Jack on the other hand have a chat with Burt’s wife. She can’t
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imagine who would shoot Burt, ’because he never had problems with anybody’. Burt was the
top salesman for Fairline the diet shake company and traveled all around the country setting
up franchises. She says he stopped traveling when it was discovered that she has arrhythmia
and would need surgery, or her heart could stop beating altogether. Burt was in Pittsburgh and
’wasn’t suppose to get back into town until tomorrow’. Later, Ralph has lunch with Katherine
and Agent Burn.

Turns out, Burn has been sent to set up office in Vegas, because it’s the epicenter of mob
activity in the country. Burn makes it clear that he wants to take down Savino. At the Savoy,
Savino tells Mia they have to find another way to get the skim to Chicago. Ralph and Jack have
a chat with Burt’s boss. He says Burt didn’t have to travel at all, because his office was just
next door. He reveals ’something came over him (Burt)’ in the last few months. Turns out, Burt
stopped attending meetings and his sales dropped. The boss feels it had something to do with
the threatening phone calls Burt used to get every few days, from a man with a thick Russian
accent. Burt had told his boss it was simply a customer who wanted his money back and had
told his boss he could ’handle it’. Ralph and Jack find out that every month Burt used to wire
$100 to someone named Nakeesh. The two, pay Nakeesh a visit.

Turns out, Nakeesh is the maiden name of a woman named Nadia Ladamer and she is Burt’s
wife. She says Burt would send her money for expenses, because he was traveling around the
country for work, half the year. She says her maiden name is Hungarian and she was born in
Budapest. She left Hungary with her mother when she was 3 months old. She says her brother
Tamas came later. Tamas never liked Burt and recently he and Burt had a big argument during
dinner. Nadia says they were probably arguing about money, because money is always an issue
for Tamas. Mia finds out that Savino’s car was found near the house where Rizzo was killed. She
is now confident Savino was the one who got Rizzo killed. She tells Jack about it, but Jack tries
to convince her that it might not be Savino.

She is adamant and Jack reluctantly says ’I’ll look into it, I promise. But you gotta keep a cool
head around Savino’. Tommy, the Savoy’s entertainment director, makes Dixon the part time
personal bodyguard of Violet, one of Silver’s actresses. During the shoot, Violet finds out her
lines have been cut. She is livid and makes away on a horse. Dixon is left with no other option
but to give chase on another horse. Tamas admits to Ralph and Jack that he was blackmailing
Burt. Tamas had basically found out Burt has another wife. Tamas says he saw who killed Burt.
He recounts that he was following Burt in his own vehicle the day Burt got killed. He saw Burt
pull over and stopped his car at a distance. He saw another car pull up behind Burt’s car.

He couldn’t see who it was, but he heard Burt being shot. ’As soon as I heard the shot I got
out of there’ he says. He says he saw the killer’s car: ’white Cadillac with a black top’. Turns out,
Burt’s wife Helen owns a car fitting that description. Helen is brought in for questioning. Ralph
and Jack are left confused after questioning her, because she didn’t seem to know anything
about Burt’s other wife. They can’t fathom if she is pretending or telling the truth. Savino calls
Jack for a meeting to his office. Savino wants Jack to distract Burn, while his men transport the
skim out of the city. Jack tells Savino to ’go to hell’. Savino reminds Jack what he has done and
says if Jack doesn’t do his bidding the world will know who killed Johnny Rizzo.

Dixon has caught up with Violet and the two apparently seem to be bonding. Dixon even gets
Violet to give him a demonstration of her acting and is impressed with what he sees. Jack in the
meantime follows Savino’s instruction and gives Agent Burn a false tip. Jack later informs Ralph
that Fairline is a fraud company and is running a Ponzi scheme. Hence, when Burt wanted to
get his money back from the company for his wife’s operation his boss Herman Thrain refused.
Burt must have as a result gotten suspicious and looked into the company’s bank accounts and
found out that the whole thing is ’one big pyramid scheme’. Thrain therefore murdered Burt.
Next, Tamas is shown having a chat with Thrain, in his office. Tamas says he saw Thrain murder
Burt.

Thrain says no one will believe him. ’Is that a chance you are willing to take?’ Tamas asks.
’What do you want?’ Thrain says. ’Ten thousand dollars’ Tamas replies. Thrain reluctantly agrees.
Thrain says he didn’t want to kill Burt, but he was ’threatening to destroy’ everything he (Thrain)
built. Thrain suddenly attacks Tamas and discovers he’s wearing a wire. Ralph enters the office
and punches Thrain in the face. He is then placed under arrest. Later, Jack helps Ralph and
Burn find the real skim, much to Savino’s irritation.

He threatens to reveal the truth but Jack apparently doesn’t care. Jack tells Mia it was he
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who killed her father. Jack tries to explain why he did it, but Mia who is livid asks him to ’get
out’. Jack returns to the station and sees that Ralph too has discovered the truth. Jack tells
Ralph everything that happened. Ralph promises Jack he will get him out of trouble.
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Little Fish

Season 1
Episode Number: 16
Season Episode: 16

Originally aired: Friday April 5, 2013
Writer: Seth Hoffman
Director: Paul McCrane
Show Stars: Sarah Jones (II) (Mia Rizzo), Taylor Handley (Dixon Lamb), Jason

O’Mara (Jack Lamb), Carrie-Anne Moss (Katherine O’Connell), Dennis
Quaid (Sheriff Ralph Lamb), Michael Chiklis (Vincent Savino)

Recurring Role: Sonny Marinelli (Nick ”Beansy” Cota), Aimee Garcia (Yvonne Sanchez),
Michael Reilly Burke (D.A. Rich Reynolds), Dustin Seavey (Deputy
Roberts)

Guest Stars: Enver Gjokaj (Tommy Stone), Shawn Doyle (Patrick Byrne), Anna
Camp (Violet Mills), Paul Ben-Victor (Abe Silver), Geoffrey Blake (Frank
Blackwell), Shanley Caswell (Patricia Edwards), Pernille Trojgaard
(Secretary Hildy), Julie Dretzin (Ellie), Ben Bowen (Desk Clerk), Idara
Victor (Nurse Humphries), Fred Ochs (Elias), Travis Johns (Jimmy
Munson), Eamon Hunt (In-House Lawyer), Scott Allen Rinker (Carter)

Summary: Following the death of her father, Mia doesn’t know whether to trust
Savino or Jack. And when Jack confronts Savino about setting him
up to kill Rizzo, the two come to blows. Sheriff Lamb is prevented from
doing his job when the FBI interferes. Dixon is head over heels for
Hollywood starlet Viola. Tommy and Dixon discover Yvonne’s singing
talent.

The episode begins at the Savoy with
Savino and Tommy discussing about a
bunch of girls, who are performing at the
casino, when they see Violet storming out
and Silver trying to convince her to stop.
They ask her why she is leaving and she
says that she is tired of living in a ho-
tel, which is why she is renting a house.
Ralph and Jack bust into a motel room
and arrest a man, who is about to have
sex with a minor. Ralph figures out that
Patricia Edwards, the minor, is a prosti-
tute and asks her, who her pimp is, but
she refuses to reveal anything, so he ar-
rests her.

Back at the sheriff’s office, Jack is told that Katherine and the D.A. are waiting for him. Ralph
urges Jack to simply tell them the truth, but Jack isn’t too sure that will help. Jack truthfully
recounts to the two how Johnny Rizzo was killed. Along with Ralph they all discuss, what story
they should tell the press and after they have gotten their stories straight, the D.A. tells Jack that
he won’t be going to prison after all. Jack is greatly relieved to hear that. Violet invites Dixon to
the house she has newly rented and after he arrives there, she strips down to a bikini and invites
him into the pool. Dixon is more than happy to oblige. At the sheriff’s office, Ralph is questioning
Frank, the guy who was arrested at the motel.

Ralphs asks Frank, who the pimp was that set up him and Patricia. Frank reluctantly reveals
the name Jimmy, but before he can reveal anything else, FBI Agent Burn barges into the room. He
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asks Frank if he was working at the Savoy as a dealer and after Frank replies in the affirmative,
Burn offers him a deal. He says all charges against Frank will be dropped if he testifies against
Savino about the skim. Frank accepts Burn’s deal and refuses to tell Ralph anything more. Ralph
isn’t happy about this and tells Burns that Frank is a child molester. Burn doesn’t care and says
taking down the mob is a bigger deal than convicting a child molester.

The next day, Violet and Dixon wake up in bed together and have a heart to heart. Dixon
asks her to dump Silver, but she says she can’t because he will then ensure that her Hollywood
career is jeopardized. She says she is stuck being his girlfriend and although Dixon is not happy
to hear this, he says nothing. At the Savoy, Jack enters the elevator Mia is in and after stopping
it halfway, he tells her that it was Savino, who riled her father up, so he would try to kill him. He
also reveals that the FBI is planning to take down the Savoy and has found a guy who will spill
the beans about the skim. She asks him, why she should trust him and he says because he still
loves her. At the sheriff’s office, Ralph asks Patricia, who is still detained, about Jimmy, but she
refuses to reveal anything. At the Savoy, Mia figures out that Frank is the one, who has agreed
to talk to the FBI.

She arrives at the sheriff’s office with her lawyer to change his mind, but Burns stops her
from meeting Frank, saying as per his advice Frank has opted for outside counsel. Tommy, who
has found out about Dixon and Violet, arrives at the sheriff’s office. Dixon tells him that Violet
doesn’t want to be with Silver, but is worried he will torpedo her career. He wants Tommy to hook
Silver up with a hot girl, so when they are getting intimate Violet walks in on them, which would
in turn give her a reason to dump Silver. Tommy agrees to do it, but says that in return he wants
Dixon to do him a favor. At the Savoy, Jack storms into Savino’s office and attacks him, which
leads to a fistfight.

Eventually, Red arrives and restrains Jack. Savino allows Jack to leaves, but warns him to
never pull such a stunt again. Before leaving, Jack tells Savino that Mia will eventually find out
the truth. At the sheriff’s office, Tommy says that he wants a liquor license. He and Dixon talk to
Yvonne, who has contacts at the city planner’s office. She agrees to help, but wants something
in return. Savino calls the D.A. to his office and orders him to handle the Feds, reminding him
that is what he gets paid for. Ralph manages to make a little headway with Patricia, but all she
is willing to say is that Jimmy is a really dangerous man. He notices a bruise on her arm and
offers to call the doctor, but she stops him, saying the doctors at the hospital told her it was only
a bruise.

Ralph arrives at the hospital to see if he can find out anything about Jimmy. A nurse tells
him that a number of girls have come in with similar injuries in the last few months. She says
that a guy always accompanies these girls and describes the guy to Ralph. She also gives him the
address of one of the girls that’s on their record. Jack and Ralph stakeout outside the girl’s house
and arrest one of her customer’s, while he is leaving her house. He agrees to tell them everything
he knows. Yvonne signs the boys a song and tells Tommy that she has always wanted to sing on
onstage. Tommy, who has loved her signing, says that he will talk to a couple of producers he
knows and Yvonne is overjoyed.

In return, she gets Tommy the liquor license and Tommy proceeds to do, what Dixon has
asked of him. Things go as planned and Dixon is glad that Violet is free from Silver’s clutches. At
the sheriff’s office, a woman pretending to be Patricia’s mother arrives and Katherine is forced to
let Patricia go with her. She is the same woman, who Mia was talking to at the Savoy earlier and
had asked to do her a favor in return for increasing her gambling credit line. Violet with tears in
her eyes tells Dixon that she has gotten a new movie and has to leave for L.A.

She promises him that she will be back. The woman brings Patricia to Mia, who hands Patricia
$3K and tells her to get into a car that will take her to Chicago, where she will be staying in a
home for girls and will be enrolled into a secretarial course. Mia is doing this, so Patricia gets
away from a life of prostitution. She thanks Mia and before leaving requests Mia to do something
for her. Ralph isn’t happy that Katherine let Patricia go. Katherine says it was legally impossible
to detain her, so she was forced to let her go. While Ralph and Jack are searching for her, Burns
arrives and says all thanks to the girl being allowed to go, he lost his leverage against Frank and
now he is refusing to talk. Jack later reveals to Ralph that he hid a wire in Savino’s phone and
going to his office to fight him was just an excuse to do this.

Jack finds Dixon brooding at the diner and Dixon tells him the reason. Jack urges him to
not give up so easily and tells him to try and get Violet back. Dixon seems to like the suggestion
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and rushes out. Mia meets Frank, who is restrained to a chair in an abandoned warehouse. She
reprimands him for thinking about testifying against her. She decides against killing him, but
Red gives him a beating, so he remembers what will happen to him if he ever decides to talk. Mia
later arrives at the sheriff’s office and hands Jack a letter from Patricia. In it she has not only
told Ralph that she is fine, but has also revealed all the details about Jimmy.

The letter helps them nab Jimmy and free all the girls he had forced into prostitution. Tommy
has arranged for Yvonne to meet a couple of producers in LA and Dixon tags along, so he can
bring Violet back. The D.A. helps Savino send the skim to Chicago and calls up Savino to confirm
it’s been sent. Jack overhears this.
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Hollywood Ending

Season 1
Episode Number: 17
Season Episode: 17

Originally aired: Friday April 12, 2013
Writer: Vanessa Reisen
Director: Michael Chiklis
Show Stars: Dennis Quaid (Sheriff Ralph Lamb), Michael Chiklis (Vincent Savino),

Carrie-Anne Moss (Katherine O’Connell), Jason O’Mara (Jack Lamb),
Sarah Jones (II) (Mia Rizzo), Taylor Handley (Dixon Lamb)

Recurring Role: Sonny Marinelli (Nick ”Beansy” Cota), Aimee Garcia (Yvonne Sanchez),
Michael Reilly Burke (D.A. Rich Reynolds)

Guest Stars: Enver Gjokaj (Tommy Stone), Shawn Doyle (Patrick Byrne), Anna
Camp (Violet Mills), Paul Ben-Victor (Barry Silver), Melinda Clarke
(Lena Cavallo), Michael Irby (Eddie Bade), Kirk B.R. Woller (Jenkins),
Omar Lopez-Cepero (Abel Cervantes), Rachel Germaine (Marie), Joe Pi-
stone (Savoy Employee), James Moses Black (Studio Security Guard),
Joel Gelman (Valet 1/Jimmy), Henry Barrial (Deep Pockets), Peter
Gannon (Security Man), Shirli McAllen (Chanteuse), Charlie Mount
(Photographer)

Summary: The district attorney starts to worry when Sheriff Lamb, Jack and
Katherine decide to figure out how Savino skims money by using the
phone tap in Savino’s office. Dixon and Yvonne visit Violet in Holly-
wood. While attending a party, Yvonne gets to show off her voice. Mia’s
presumed dead mother, Lena, shows up at the Savoy.

The episode begins with Dixon and
Yvonne arriving in Hollywood. Yvonne is
really excited about her first audition,
while Dixon is excited about meeting Vi-
olet. At the Savoy, DA Reynolds arrives
and while he is partaking in the enter-
tainment there, Mia and gang take his
vehicle to the back and load it up with
the skim money. The DA isn’t comfort-
able with being a part of Savino’s con, but
Savino says the feds are sniffing around,
so there isn’t any other way to smuggle
out the money. He reminds the DA that
he is on his payroll and he better act like
it.

At the sheriff’s office, Jack plays Ralph
and Katherine the recording of Savino’s phone tap. In it, he is heard talking about the skim, but
they can’t figure out, who was the person on the other side. Katherine wants to bring the feds
in on this, but Jack is reluctant because he feels he won’t be able to protect Mia if they do.
Katherine is adamant, so he has no other option, but to agree. At the Savoy, Savino sees a
woman flirting around with one of his customers. He is curious because he has never seen her
before, so he walks up to her for a chat. She tells him that her name is Lina. They flirt around
a bit and eventually end up having sex in his room. At the sheriff’s office, Jack urges Katherine
to help Mia in any way she can, so Mia doesn’t get into trouble after the feds get involved in the
case.
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At the Savoy, after they are done having sex, Savino is shocked to learn that Lina is Mia’s
mother and has come there to meet her daughter. At the DA’s office, Reynolds is stunned when
he learns about the evidence Katherine has gathered against Savino and how the feds are being
brought in to handle this case. She reveals that during the call Savino addressed the person
ferrying the skim as ”Avocado” and they need to find out the true identity of this person. Katherine
notices, how worried Reynolds is, but she assumes that’s because Eddie Bait, a notorious armed
robber, who Reynolds had convicted, is out on parole. In Hollywood, Dixon and Yvonne aren’t
allowed to enter the studio, where Violet’s movie is being shot, so they dress up as extras and get
in.

Outside the Savoy, Katherine stops Mia, while she is heading home and tries to talk her
into testifying against Savino, but she refuses, saying she isn’t a rat. In Hollywood, Dixon finds
Violet’s dressing room and goes in to talk to her and convince her to spend the evening with
him. She looks more worried than happy to see him and refuses to go out with him in the night,
saying she has other plans. While she is walking Dixon out, Silver arrives and is surprised to see
him there. Violet lies to Silver that Dixon is in town with his girlfriend Yvonne, who is acting in a
movie. Silver buys it and invites the duo to a party at his house in the night. Dixon accepts the
invitation, much to Violet’s surprise. At the sheriff’s office, Ralph gets a call about a break-in at
DA Reynolds’ house. He arrives at the DA’s house with Katherine and Jack and sees signs of a
struggle and traces of blood on the stuff scattered in the house.

The neighbors also inform them that they saw a blue car with no plates that was parked
outside the DA’s house, drive away right after there was a commotion. Katherine concludes
Reynolds has been kidnapped by Eddie Bait. At the Savoy, Savino introduces Mia to her mother
and quickly leaves the room. Mia isn’t too happy with the news because Lila had left when Mia
was two and her father had told her she was dead. Mia can’t understand why Lina didn’t get in
touch with her all these years. Lina claims Johnny thought she was cheating on him, so he sent
her packing and threatened to kill her if she ever tried to contact Mia. She cuts the conversation
short by asking Lila why she is here. Before walking out, Lila says she just wanted Mia to know
that she has a family and isn’t alone. At Silver’s party, while Yvonne is busy singing for the
guests, Dixon is busy making out with Violet in a secluded part of the house.

Silver is impressed with her performance and says he wants her to audition for his new
musical. She asks her to come by his office the next day for the auditions. Their conversation
is interrupted by one of Silver’s men, who informs him that an undercover reporter has been
caught taking pictures at the party. Yvonne spies the reporter being badly beaten up by Silver’s
men and is terrified. At the sheriff’s office, Ralph and Jack learn that Eddie, after recently getting
out of jail, bought himself a blue car. They both conclude that Katherine was right about the
kidnapping and alert the cops across the state to keep a lookout for Bait. At the Savoy, Savino
and gang are worried when they see on the news that the DA has been kidnapped.

Savino feels they will be in trouble if Chicago doesn’t get the skim money, which was loaded
in the DA’s vehicle. Mia suggests that for the time being they arrange for the skim money from
somewhere else. She even volunteers to personally take it to those, who are supposed to receive
it. Savino likes the idea and hands her a diary containing the names of the people, who the money
has to be given to. He then tells Red to find out where Reynolds and the actual skim money is.
After Bait is arrested at a motel where he was about to have sex with a prostitute at, he at the
sheriff’s office, reveals that the DA paid him to take off after buying a blue car and parking it
outside the DA’s house. On hearing this, Katherine and Ralph are convinced that DA Reynolds
set Bait up.

Burn comes in and reveals that from Savino’s call records and from the fact that the DA
was seen frequenting the Savoy recently, it has been ascertained that the DA is Avocado. Ralph
figures out that the DA might try to hide the stolen skim money in some large bank. Next, the
DA comes out of a bank and finds Ralph standing outside waiting for him. At the sheriff’s office,
Burn offers Reynolds a deal, saying he won’t be sent to jail if he continues pretending to work for
Savino and gives them all the names and details of the people involved in his business. Despite
the risk, Reynolds agrees to the deal. At Silver’s office, Yvonne arrives for the audition, but turns
out he is interested in something else. He comes on to her and when she tries to push him away
and walk out, he tries to sexually assault her, so she hits him on the head with an ashtray.

At the Savoy, Mia sees a guest complaining that his chips have been stolen. After compensat-
ing the guest, she checks her mother’s room and finds the chips hidden under her clothes. While

58



Vegas Episode Guide

she is at it, Lina arrives and admits to stealing the chips, but argues that she is only looking out
for herself. She reminds Mia that she steals as well, but the only difference is that she does it for
gangsters. Mia sees the logic in her argument and soon after when Savino arrives at Lina’s room,
she tells him nothing about the stealing and quietly walks away. While he is spending some time
with Lina, Red arrives and cryptically hints that the DA has been found. He and Red arrive at
a motel room, where they see Reynolds gagged and restrained to a chair. Reynolds lies to them
that he wired Bait some money as ransom, which is why he let him live and escaped. He says the
skim money is still safely stashed in the trunk of his car that is sitting in his driveway. Savino
apparently believes him.

In Hollywood, Dixon is really angry on learning what Silver tried to do to Yvonne after he sees
bruises on her face and she is forced to reveal everything. Yvonne warns him to not do anything
foolish because she has seen how dangerous Silver can be. At the sheriff’s office, Reynolds in-
forms the team that the skim will be picked up in the night at a mausoleum. Burn wants names
and details of everyone the skim will be going to and in return, Reynolds will get his deal. At the
Savoy, Mia sneaks into Savino’s empty office and after opening his safe, notes down all details
from the diary, which has names and other details about the people, who the skim is sent to. At
the mausoleum, Reynolds arrives with the skim and is shocked to see Red hauling in a gagged
Bait with him.

Savino, who is already there, hands Reynolds a gun and in order to prove he was telling the
truth, asks him to shoot Bait. Instead of shooting Bait, Reynolds points the gun at Savino and
pulls the trigger, but is shocked to learn that it’s empty. In Hollywood, Silver is alone at home
and is humming a tune, when he sees Dixon hiding in the living room. On seeing him, Silver
tries to run, but Dixon grabs him and gives him a beating. At the sheriff’s office, via the phone
tap Ralph and team are shocked to learn that the skim has made it out and Reynolds has been
taken care of.
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Scoundrels

Season 1
Episode Number: 18
Season Episode: 18

Originally aired: Saturday April 20, 2013
Writer: Matt Payne
Director: Christine Moore (III)
Show Stars: Dennis Quaid (Sheriff Ralph Lamb), Michael Chiklis (Vincent Savino),

Carrie-Anne Moss (Katherine O’Connell), Sarah Jones (II) (Mia Rizzo),
Taylor Handley (Dixon Lamb), Jason O’Mara (Jack Lamb)

Recurring Role: James Russo (Anthony ”Red” Cervelli), Sonny Marinelli (Nick ”Beansy”
Cota), Aimee Garcia (Yvonne Sanchez), Dustin Seavey (Deputy
Roberts), Robert Atchinson (Desk Clerk)

Guest Stars: Anna Camp (Violet Mills), Paul Ben-Victor (Barry Silver), Melinda
Clarke (Lena Cavallo), Derek Delgaudio (Johnny Wonder), Daniel Roe-
buck (Teddy Brown), A. Leslie Kies (Check-in Clerk), Joe Egender
(Otis), Jim O’Heir (Bank Manager), Peter Gannon (Security Man),
Alexandra Ella (Woman)

Summary: A bruised Violet accuses Dixon of assaulting her, leaving Katherine no
choice but to arrest him. Savino has big problems after the body of a
gambler is found in one of the Savoy suites.

The episode begins and Ralph with Jack
and Dixon’s help brings under control
a raging bull that had escaped from an
overturned trailer. On the way back to his
office, Ralph stops over at the Savoy and
has a talk with Savino. During their con-
versation, Savino gets a call from Lena,
who asks him to immediately come to a
suite. At the sheriff’s office, Violet arrives
and urges Dixon to come to her hotel
room in the night, so they can sort things
out. At the Savoy in the suite, Savino ar-
rives and sees a man lying dead on the
floor. Lena says the man’s name is Martin
and she and he had spent a great night

together.
The next day at the sheriff’s office, Dixon arrives and sees Violet sitting there with a bruised

eye and a bleeding lip. He asks Jack, who hurt her and is shocked, when Jack says that Violet
is claiming he (Dixon) did. After Katherine informs him that Violet is claiming he assaulted her
last night in her hotel room because she broke up with him, Dixon tells her and Ralph that he
is innocent. He says he did not even go to her hotel room last night, but Katherine tells him that
she has to at least investigate the matter, so it doesn’t look like she is favoring him. At the Savoy
in the suite, Lena reveals that she spent the night gambling with Martin and while at it, he came
to his suite for a break.

When he didn’t return for a long time, she came to his suite looking for him and found him
lying dead on the floor. Red arrives a while later and informs them that Teddy Brown, a high
roller, is looking for Martin because he thinks Martin stole from him. Savino and gang wonder,
how they should deal with this situation. At the sheriff’s office, Yvonne tells Ralph and Katherine
all that happened in LA. On hearing all of it, Ralph comes to the conclusion that it’s Silver, who is
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framing Dixon using Violet. Katherine agrees with Ralph, but says that she as a DA is obligated
to investigate and adds that Ralph should stay away from the investigation, so it doesn’t look like
he is trying to protect his son.

At the Savoy, Savino tries to reason with an agitated Teddy Brown, who claims that besides
money, Martin Purcell also stole his grandfather’s watch. Savino tries to calm him down, but
instead, Brown rushes to Purcell’s room to talk to him, while Savino whispers to Red to quickly
ask Coda to get rid of Purcell’s body from the room. Soon after, Brown arrives at Purcell’s room,
sees he isn’t there and tells Savino he has 24 hrs to find his grandfather’s watch. He warns
Savino that if the watch isn’t found he will shout from the rooftops that high rollers are fleeced
at the Savoy.

At the DA’s office, Katherine confronts Dixon about the fact that he was seen at the Savoy
last night and was also photographed by someone. She urges him to tell her the truth if he really
wants her to protect him and also tells him that based on the evidence; she has to for now arrest
him. Ralph isn’t too happy to hear this and forbids Dixon from telling her anything, saying she
has a job to do and it’s not in his (Dixon) best interests. Ralph then brings Dixon back to the
sheriff’s office and puts him in a cell, after carrying out all the procedures. At the Savoy, Mia
informs Savino about Purcell’s banker based on whose recommendation she approved a $20,000
credit line for Purcell. They decide to talk to the banker to see if they can learn something more
about Purcell because no one else seems to know anything about him.

Ralph arrives with Jack to meet Silver, who is staying at the Savoy. Silver pisses off Ralph
by saying his son will rot in jail just like he deserves to and Silver’s bodyguards, who work for
the LAPD intervene, so Ralph doesn’t hurt Silver. Jack asks at the concierge desk about the
honeymoon couple, who saw Dixon at the Savoy, the night of the incident. At Purcell’s bank,
Mia and Lena learn that Odis Beacon, the banker who endorsed Purcell, is only a teller, who
pretended to be the manager. They also learn that there is only $184 in Purcell’s account. Odis
realizes his game is up and tries to make a run for it, but Mia manages to apprehend him. At
the DA’s office, Jack and Ralph tell Katherine that they have investigated and learnt that the
honeymooners were actually actors.

She believes them, but adds that the state has decided to move forward with this case, so they
should hire Dixon a good defense attorney. She says she is recusing herself from this case and
another DA from a different county will be handling it. Upon questioning Odis, Savino learns that
he and Purcell were working together to rob high rollers and also that Odis killed Purcell because
they had a falling out. Savino asks him about the watch and he reveals that Purcell used to hide
his loot in the heel of his shoe and must have hidden the watch there. At the sheriff’s office, Mia
meets Jack and offers to have pressure applied on Silver from Chicago, but Jack refuses, saying
the truth will be the best solution to Dixon’s predicament.

While talking about the issue with Yvonne, Dixon reveals that he went to Violet’s room the
night of the incident to end it with her and tell her that she likes someone else. Yvonne figures
out, who that someone else is, and tells Dixon with a smile, that she feels the same way. While
looking at a picture of Violet’s bruised face in a newspaper, Ralph suddenly figures our something
and asks his deputies to stop Silver from leaving town. Silver, Violet and his men, who were about
to leave town, are then brought in on the charges of carrying weapons, which are only registered
in California. At the sheriff’s office, Katherine informs Ralph that Silver’s mean and powerful
lawyer will be there is 15 minutes.

Ralph tells her that’s all the time he needs and proceeds to have a talk with Violet. Ralph
manages to reason with her and eventually gets her to confess that it was Silver, who assaulted
her. He gives Dixon the news that Violet recanted and Dixon is greatly relieved to hear that. After
Odis digs up Purcell’s body, which was buried by Coda, and recovers the watch from the heel of
Purcell’s shoe, Coda and Red leave Odis in Purcell’s grave and drive away, taking the watch with
them.

At the Savoy, the watch is returned to Brown and all is well again. Over a few glasses of
cocktail, Mia and her mother have a heart to heart. At the diner, Dixon meets Yvonne and they
share a few laughs.
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Past Lives

Season 1
Episode Number: 19
Season Episode: 19

Originally aired: Friday April 26, 2013
Writer: Katie Wech
Director: Roxann Dawson
Show Stars: Dennis Quaid (Sheriff Ralph Lamb), Michael Chiklis (Vincent Savino),

Carrie-Anne Moss (Katherine O’Connell), Jason O’Mara (Jack Lamb),
Sarah Jones (II) (Mia Rizzo), Taylor Handley (Dixon Lamb)

Recurring Role: James Russo (Anthony ”Red” Cervelli), Sonny Marinelli (Nick ”Beansy”
Cota), Aimee Garcia (Yvonne Sanchez), Shawn Doyle (Patrick Byrne),
Dustin Seavey (Deputy Roberts)

Guest Stars: Michael Ironside (Porter Gainsley), Joseph Haro (Tony), Chris Mc-
Garry (Harry French), Wynn Everett (Hazel French), Darren O’Hare
(II) (George), B.K. Cannon (Fern), Jeanette Brox (Leila), Ronnie Stead-
man (Ned Harris), Christopher Goodman (Wayne Lasky), Jim Meski-
men (Milton Krill), Mary Bonner Baker (Joyce), Christopher Gehrman
(Court Clerk), Rod Damer (Chaplain), Ross Mackenzie (Doctor), Cory
Tucker (Lucas)

Summary: As Sheriff Lamb and Jack investigate the murder of a Savoy craps
dealer, a desperate suspect in the case takes Mia hostage, demanding
a ransom for his getaway. Meanwhile, Savino plots to play dirty with
Gainsley when The Tumbleweed Casino reopens, and Yvonne ques-
tions her new relationship with Dixon when her ethnic background
becomes an issue.

The episode begins with the opening of
the Tumbleweed Club. Savino and his
men talk about Gainsley, who is a part-
ner of theirs in the club and is set to
get the lion’s share of the profits be-
cause Chicago is backing him. Dixon and
Yvonne are out on a date and seem to
be having a good time. At the DA’s of-
fice, Ralph sees a number of Savoy’s em-
ployees and is curious. Katherine tells
him they are there because Burn wants
to trap them for tax evasion, so he can
get them to turn against Savino and be-
come FBI informers. Ralph is unhappy
that Burn is bothering the working folk

just to trap Savino.
In his office, Burn is busy breaking the employees by threatening to charge them with tax

evasion, for the undeclared income they earn in the form of tips. While on their date, Dixon sees
a drunken man creating a nuisance on the streets and proceeds to arrest him. Ned, one of the
men Burn had talked to earlier and who used to work as a craps dealer in the Savoy, is found
dead in the swimming pool of his house by a neighbor of his. A bullet to the chest was the cause
of death. At the Savoy, Harry, one of the employees of the casino, points a gun at Mia just as she
is about to enter her office and asks that he be handed over $20K in cash.
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After going into her office, Mia with a gun to her head calls the cashier and says she needs
$20K sent to her office right away. At the Tumbleweed, Savino and Red are busy plotting Gains-
ley’s downfall. Savino plans to start by dealing with Gainsley’s lawyer. At the sheriff’s office,
Ralph and Jack aren’t able to dig up much info on Ned, so Jack decides to have a talk with Mia
to see if she can help. At the DA’s office, a woman employee of the Savoy arrives in tears and
tells Ralph and Katherine that she is being investigated by the IRS. This is Burn’s doing but he
refuses to call off the investigation unless the woman agrees to cooperate. The woman counters
that she doesn’t have an important enough job to get the FBI any info.

On hearing this, Burn says he can’t help her. Katherine and Ralph later discuss the issue and
she admits Burn is going a bit overboard with his investigation. After Jack arrives at Mia’s office
to have a talk with her, he sees a man holding a gun to her head, who tells him to come in, hand
over his handcuffs and close the door behind him. At the sheriff’s office, Burn hands Ralph a file
with Ned Harris’ details in it. From the file, Ralph and Katherine learn that Ned and a partner of
his used to own a clothing factory that burned down, killing one employee. The case never made
it to court because Ned and his partner jumped bail. Katherine concludes that the family of the
fire victim could have caught up with Ned. Ralph feels it could also be his partner, so they decide
to once again talk to Ned’s neighbor, who found his body.

After persuading him to part with information, Gainsley’s lawyer reveals to Savino that Gains-
ley is nearly broke and the Tumbleweed is his last hope. At Mia’s office, they are all still waiting
for the money to arrive. Mia tells an impatient Harry that they are short staffed, which is why
it’s taking so long. On talking to neighbor Ralph and Katherine learn that her husband and Ned
moved together to Las Vegas 10 years ago. She it turns out doesn’t know anything about her
husband’s past from before he and Ned moved there. She tells them that he too works at the
Savoy and is presently at work. The duo figures out that her husband is Arthur Hauser, Ned’s
partner in the clothing business, who jumped bail with him.

At the Savoy, Jack notices Harry smoking a cigarette of the very same brand he had seen
stubs of, in an ashtray in Ned’s house. Tony, the cashier, brings the money to the room. He sees
Harry standing there with a gun in hand and is terrified. He tries to run, but Harry stops him
and in the struggle, Tony ends up getting shot in the stomach. After Harry is done calling his
wife and telling her where to meet him, he tells Jack and Mia that he didn’t mean to shoot Tony.
Jack taunts Harry, saying just like he didn’t mean to shoot Ned. Jack has figured out that Harry
is actually Arthur Hauser.

He realizes his game is up, so he confesses that he killed Ned because Ned was planning to
tell everything to the FBI after the feds threatened to run his prints. Jack tries to talk Harry out
of making matter worse for himself, saying he should let them go and hand himself over to the
police. Ralph arrives at the Savoy looking for Harry, which is when a doctor arrives and says he
got a call for a gunshot would from Mia’s office. Ralph arrives in her office with the doctor and
sees Tony lying on the floor. Harry and his hostages aren’t there. While an injured Tony is being
rushed to the ambulance, he tells Ralph where Harry is headed with his hostages.

After asking Savino to stay out of this, Ralph rushes to his vehicle. Harry arrives at the spot,
where his wife is waiting for him. She asks him if he really killed Ned and he admits he did. She
on hearing this refuses to go with him. Jack convinces Harry to just take him hostage and leave
Mia behind, reasoning it would be easier for him to manage one hostage. Harry drives away with
Jack, while Mia, who seems touched by Jack’s sacrifice, helplessly looks on. Ralph manages to
catch up with Harry and crashes his pickup into Harry’s. The gun slips out of Harry’s hand and
Jack immediately overpowers him. Mia is later relived to see that Jack is fine and kisses him.

At the sheriff’s office, Ralph notices Dixon is having relationship issues, so he gives him some
advice. At the Tumbleweed, the FBI arrives to check on Gainsley’s books. This is Savino’s doing
because he knows Gainsley has been breaking the law. He has been doing so by directing the
money he was suppose to pay as a compensation for an accident that occurred in a mine he
owns towards running the Tumbleweed. Dixon and Yvonne make amends, after he tells her that
he isn’t going to give up on them this easily. Outside the Tumbleweed, Agent Burn is shot by
the woman, whose IRS investigation, Burn refused to call off earlier. Katherine, who is with him,
yells out for help.
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Unfinished Business

Season 1
Episode Number: 20
Season Episode: 20

Originally aired: Friday May 3, 2013
Writer: Steven Levenson, Greg Walker
Director: Rosemary Rodriguez
Show Stars: Dennis Quaid (Sheriff Ralph Lamb), Michael Chiklis (Vincent Savino),

Carrie-Anne Moss (Katherine O’Connell), Jason O’Mara (Jack Lamb),
Sarah Jones (II) (Mia Rizzo), Taylor Handley (Dixon Lamb)

Recurring Role: James Russo (Anthony ”Red” Cervelli), Sonny Marinelli (Nick ”Beansy”
Cota), Aimee Garcia (Yvonne Sanchez), Enver Gjokaj (Tommy Stone),
Shawn Doyle (Patrick Byrne)

Guest Stars: Michael Ironside (Porter Gainsley), Cory Tucker (Lucas), Melinda
Clarke (Lena Cavallo), Matt Shallenberger (Roulette Dealer), Jim
Meskimen (MIlton Krill), Amanda MacDonald (Greta), Christopher
Heyerdahl (Cal Sprouse), Larry Hankin (Victor Ferris), Keith Sellon-
Wright (Surgeon), Rob Brownstein (Arthur Knowles), Rod Britt (Fred
Reese)

Summary: The death of a local attorney triggers a series of events that puts Sheriff
Lamb’s badge at risk and puts Katherine in the hospital. Some new in-
formation could disclose the truth about Marilyn Lamb’s unfortunate
death.

The episode begins at the Savoy with
Tommy and Mia watching a bunch of
showgirls performing onstage. Savino
comes with the Gaming Commissioner
and asks Tommy to give the commis-
sioner a front row seat. Savino tells Mia
that the commissioner for a $25,000
bribe is renewing the gaming license of
the Tumbleweed much faster than the
time it would have normally taken. At
a hospital, Burn, who has survived de-
spite being shot, is being taken care of by
Katherine. Burn tells Katherine that they
could pressure Gainsley with what they
have on him to turn against Savino.

At Savino’s office, he manages to con-
vince Gainsley to sell his shares in the Tumbleweed to him (Savino) for a throwaway price. Savino
does this by reminding Gainsley that the FBI is on his ass, which is why it would be better for
him to walk away with the money than nothing at all. While Jack is heading for lunch with Mia,
they run into Lena, who tells Mia that she is heading for Lake Tahoe. Dixon comes and tells Jack
that he needs to see something. Outside the Savoy a car is parked and in its trunk is the dead
body of Milton Krill, a famous lawyer. Ralph, Jack and Dixon see a dead canary stuffed in his
mouth. Ralph concludes this is to symbolize that Krill sang like a canary and spilled someone’s
secret. At the sheriff’s office, Katherine informs Ralph and Jack that Krill was Gainsley’s lawyer.

Krill was trying to get the injunction against the Tumbleweed shutdown, removed. She also
tells the duo that Savino for some reason had paid off Krill’s $50,000 debt two days ago. She
feels that Savino used this as a leverage to get Krill to do what he wanted. Jack concludes it was
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Savino, who got the Tumbleweed shutdown, using the information he got from Krill. Katherine
figures that Savino then killed Krill because he was no more useful. Ralph isn’t so sure Savino
did it because it would be too obvious. While they are chatting, Gainsley arrives to meet Ralph.
Gainsley tells Ralph to arrest Savino because evidence points to him being the killer. After telling
Gainsley to let him do his job, Ralph shows him the door.

At Krill’s office, while looking around, Ralph learns from Krill’s secretary that a man had a
few days ago stormed into Krill’s office and threatened him for some reason. On learning that
this man was Calvin Sprouse, Ralph is shocked because Calvin is his dead wife’s brother. Ralph
has a talk with Calvin, who says Krill’s company bought his family ranch and had agreed to
pay him every month for 25 years, but one day the checks stopped coming. This was the reason
why Calvin threatened Krill. He says that a day after he had a fight with Krill a couple of guys
showed up and threatened him. They wanted him to stop asking about the money and about the
company Krill was working for. Calvin assures the duo that he knows nothing more about this
issue.

At the sheriff’s office, Yvonne shows Dixon paperwork, which reveals that NLC, the company
Krill was working for, wanted Calvin and his mother to sell the ranch for moths before she
died, but she kept saying no. Dixon realizes that there was foul play involved in his mother’s
death. In the night, Dixon arrives at Calvin’s and points a shotgun at him while he’s sleeping.
Calvin wakes up and Dixon accuses him of killing his own sister, so he could sell off the land.
Calvin manages to snatch the gun from Dixon and renders him unconscious using it. After
Dixon regains consciousness, Calvin and he have a chat over some coffee. Calvin admits that he
desperately needed the money, so he tried to convince his sister to sell, but she wouldn’t budge.

He adds that he didn’t lay a finger on her and only sold the land after she passed away
because NLC made another offer. Dixon feels NLC might have had something to do with his
mother’s death. Calvin warns Dixon to stay away from NLC, saying they are trouble, but Dixon
has made up his mind to get to the bottom of this issue. At the hospital, Burn tells Katherine
that he been promoted and will for this reason have to move to Washington. She collects the
box of files on Gainsley from Burn, saying she will continue her investigation. At the sheriff’s
office, after Dixon shares his doubts and apprehensions with Ralph, he agrees to help Dixon
investigate the issue. At the Savoy, Savino, who seems to have feelings for Lena, tells her that he
has cancelled her reservations for Lake Tahoe, so she can be with him.

Savino brings Lena into an empty Tumbleweed, which is yet to reopen. He has arranged
everything including some romantic music, so they can spend some time romancing each other.
While the duo is slow dancing to a romantic number, there is a huge explosion, which throws
them off their feet. Savino picks himself up and rushes out of the Tumbleweed with Lena, before
the place catches fire. While the fire department deals with the Tumbleweed, Ralph and Katherine
have a talk with Savino. They tell Savino that Gainsley was possibly behind this explosion, so he
should help them take Gainsley down. Savino refuses and walks away. While walking back to the
car, Katherine tells Ralph that if Savino isn’t willing to work with them to take down Gainsely,
maybe they should use Gainsley to take down Savino.

Ralph likes the idea. The next day at her office, Katherine calls Gainsley for a chat. She tells
him that she feels he had Krill killed because Krill ratted about him to the FBI. She even accuses
him of making the whole thing look like Savino did it. Gainsley isn’t too pleased with these
accusations being leveled at him and storms out. At a retirement home, Katherine meets Victor
Farris, the man who according official documents is the President of NLC. She on talking to him
realizes that Farris is suffering from dementia. At the Savoy, Tommy flirts with Mia and even
kisses her. She pushes him away, saying she is with Jack. Tommy counters; asking if that’s the
case, why is it that she didn’t pull away from the kiss sooner.

While she is driving back to town, Katherine sees a pickup trailing her vehicle. Eventually, the
pickup bangs into her from behind and sends her car spinning out of control and into a ditch.
Next, Ralph is shown pacing outside an E.R. The doctor comes and tells Ralph that Katherine
has been hurt real bad and has even suffered cerebral hemorrhage. The doc says a specialist has
been called in to see her. Ralph sees Burn there. Burn says he changed his mind about going to
DC because he has some unfinished business. Jack hands Ralph a file found in Katherine’s car.
It’s a file from the retirement home and Ralph sees that the documents in it are in the name of
Victor Farris. Ralph immediately recalls that Farris is the President of NLC.

At the Savoy, after being told over the phone that he can’t make a move on Gainsley just
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yet, Savino angrily hangs up. This dismantles a part of the receiver and Savino notices that his
phone is wired. Savino recalls Jack coming into his office a month ago and knocking him out.
He therefore concludes this is Jack’s doing and tells Mia who is there that her boyfriend will put
them all in prison. At the sheriff’s office, Ralph is told by Jack that he has learnt Gainsley was
paying the bills for Farris’ retirement home for the past 12 years. They figure that this means
Gainsley was using Farris as a front to run NLC. Jack says Katherine had figured this out before
she was run off the road. Before Ralph can take any sort of action against Gainsley, he using his
influence gets Ralph suspended, on the charges of harassing him on Savino’s behalf.

Later, Jack goes into jewelry store to buy a diamond ring. At Savino’s office, Ralph arrives
and after informing him that he has been suspended, he offers to join hands with Savino to take
down Gainsley. After Savino accepts his offer, the two pour themselves a drink and seal the deal.
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Sons of Nevada

Season 1
Episode Number: 21
Season Episode: 21

Originally aired: Friday May 10, 2013
Writer: Nick Santora, Greg Walker
Director: Duane Clark
Show Stars: Dennis Quaid (Sheriff Ralph Lamb), Michael Chiklis (Vincent Savino),

Carrie-Anne Moss (Katherine O’Connell), Jason O’Mara (Jack Lamb),
Sarah Jones (II) (Mia Rizzo), Taylor Handley (Dixon Lamb)

Recurring Role: James Russo (Anthony ”Red” Cervelli), Sonny Marinelli (Nick ”Beansy”
Cota), Aimee Garcia (Yvonne Sanchez), Enver Gjokaj (Tommy Stone),
Shawn Doyle (Patrick Byrne), Dustin Seavey (Deputy Roberts)

Guest Stars: Michael Ironside (Porter Gainsley), Cory Tucker (Lucas), Damon Her-
riman (Mr. Jones), Melinda Clarke (Lena Cavallo), Grant Sullivan (II)
(William Dylan), Josh Clark (Attorney General), Billy Finnigan (Gains-
ley Guard), Kristin Slaysman (Marilyn Lamb), Krista Kalmus (Gigi)

Summary: Savino and Sheriff Lamb team up to take down Porter Gainsley. Porter
put Katherine in the hospital and Ralph is convinced he killed Marilyn.
Jack decides to ask Mia to marry him.

The episode begins with Ralph arriv-
ing at the scene of Katherine’s accident.
He suddenly sees an apparition of his
dead wife nearby and is stunned. At the
Savoy, Savino tells Lena that he is un-
sure whether he should help Ralph take
down Gainsley. Lena gives him a pep talk,
saying he will eventually know what to
do and will come out a winner. In Lake
Tahoe, Gainsley, with the help of the At-
torney General, is making plans to take
down all the casinos in Vegas like they
took down Savino’s, so they can eventu-
ally take over the casino business in Ve-
gas. At Mia’s, Jack arrives ring in hand,

but before he can tell her why he is there, she confronts him about hiding a bug in Savino’s
phone.

He tries to explain himself, but she is really pissed and tells him they are through. At Savino’s
office, Ralph strikes a deal with him; Savino kills Gainsley and in return he gets back all the
tapes, which could implicate him. Savino is curious why Ralph wants Gainsley killed. Ralph
reveals that Gainsley killed his wife, which is reason enough. At the Savoy, Tommy continues
flirting with Mia. He invites her to lunch and despite her reluctance, he insists that she come.
At their ranch, Ralph tells Jack about the deal he has struck with Savino. Jack isn’t too happy
to hear about it and even tries to stop Ralph from doing anything crazy, but Ralph has made up
his mind. Ralph then picks Savino up from the Savoy.

The duo stakes out, outside Gainsely’s home, to keep a watch on his movements. Ralph
concludes they can take down Gainsley, when he shows up for a cattle auction. They decide to
hide near the venue and wait for Gainsley. At the sheriff’s office, Jack tells Dixon about Ralph’s
plan. He tells Dixon that Ralph might end up dead, while trying to kill Gainsley, so they have to
find some way to try and stop him. Dixon sees an ad in the papers about a cattle auction and
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figures, that is the place where Ralph and Savino will try to take down Ganisley. At the auction,
before Ralph and Savino can take Gainsley down, Dixon arrives and points a gun at Gainsley,
threatening to kill him.

Ralph is shocked to see this and rushes to rescue Dixon before he is shot down. He and Dixon
somehow make it out of there, before Gainsley’s men can shoot them down. Later, Gainsely is
informed that Ralph and Savino have joined hands to take him down. Gainsley decides to call for
extra hands in preparation of a war. At Lake Tahoe, Burn has a talk with the Attorney General,
warning him against blindly helping a man like Gainsely. At the sheriff’s office, a bunch of men
arrive. Their leader tells Jack that he is the new sheriff and adds that he has been ordered to
take him and Dixon into protective custody. Jack knows these are Gainsley’s men, so he refuses
to comply.

Before things get out of hand, Burn arrives with other FBI agents and takes Jack and Dixon
in custody. Before hauling them away, Burn whispers in Jack’s ear that he is doing this to save
his lives. At the Savoy, after bidding Lena a goodbye, Savino plans to leave town for a few days,
to get away from Gainsley and his men. Before he can drive off, Ralph arrives. While they are
chatting, Burn comes there with Dixon and Jack. Burn asks Savino and Ralph to come with
him, so he can protect them from Gainsley. Savino turns down Burn’s offer and is about to drive
away, when Ralph reminds him that he kept his word and gave him the tapes. Savino seems
unaffected by the reminder, but stops his car after driving a few hundred meters.

He then gets out and walks towards Ralph, yelling that he too would have kept his word if
Ralph had kept his son in a leash. While he is at it, Savino’s vehicle is blown to smithereens.
After lunch, on the way to the Savoy, Tommy flirts with Mia and she seems to like it. They arrive
outside the Savoy and are shocked to see Vincent’s car lying there in pieces. Savino brings Ralph,
Jack and Dixon to meet Mr. Jones. Savino tells them that Mr. Jones can help them take down
Gainsley. Jack isn’t too keen to take help from a professional assassin, but Ralph convinces him,
saying Mr. Jones is the best at what he does.

In the night, Savino and Ralph drop Jones near Gainsley’s house, so he can do his thing.
Savino tells him that they will be waiting for him at the slaughterhouse. Jones walks up to
Gainsley’s gate and when stopped by his men, tells them that he was sent by Savino to kill
Gainsley. He says he works for the highest bidder and asks to talk to Gainsley, so he can make
a deal. At the Savoy, Mia tells Lena about her breakup and she gives her some relationship
advice, saying she (Mia) did a good thing breaking up with him because she and Jack are on the
opposite sides of the law. At the slaughterhouse Ralph, Savino and gang, arm themselves and
wait for Jones’ return.

At Gainsley’s, Jones tells him and his men, where Savino and Ralph are. He for $20,000 also
offers to help Gainsley kill them. At the slaughterhouse, Gainsley and his men arrive with Jones.
The moment they enter, they are surrounded by Savino, Ralph and gang. Gainsley and his men
are ordered to lay down their gun. They reluctantly comply. Ralph keeps his end of the bargain
and allows Jones to leave town, in return for him doing as he was told. At the last moment, Ralph
changes his mind about killing Gainsley and handcuffs him instead. Savino is not too happy on
seeing this and is even more shocked, when Ralph hands over Gansley to Burn, who has arrived
there with his team.

Savino even chides Ralph for letting the man, who killed his wife, live, but Ralph is unmoved.
Later, Jack lands up at Mia’s and the moment she opens the door, he gets down on one knee and
proposes, ring in hand. Before she can react, Tommy walks out of her bedroom, wearing only a
towel. Jack is shocked to see him there and quietly leaves. While he is organizing things for the
reopening of the Tumbleweed, Savino sees Ralph walk by. He stops Ralph and asks Ralph, to
work for him, as head of security.

After telling Savino that he really appreciates the offer, Ralph reveals that he has been reap-
pointed as the sheriff, now that Gainsley is out of the way. The two have a laugh about the whole
thing and go their different ways.
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Actor Appearances

A
Ed Ackerman.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0103 (Bouncer)
Jay Acovone . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0110 (Nicky Tomisano)
Eddie Alfano. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0112 (Lonnie Mills)
Todd Robert Anderson . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0115 (Director)
Richmond Arquette . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0106 (Jackie Sullivan)
Robert Atchinson. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0118 (Desk Clerk)
Tom Ayers . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0110 (Moe Berman)

B
Mary Bonner Baker . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0119 (Joyce)
Judith Baldwin. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0101 (Dorris Meade)
Samuel Ball . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0112 (Max Voorhees)
Jonathan Banks . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0103 (Angelo); 0107 (Angelo LaFlatta)
Keith Barber. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0113 (Rancher)
Henry Barrial. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0117 (Deep Pockets)
Adam Bartley. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0113 (Robbie Reuben)
Gil Bellows . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

0106 (George Grady); 0107 (George Grady); 0109
(George Grady)

Paul Ben-Victor . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4
0115 (Abe Silver); 0116 (Abe Silver); 0117 (Barry

Silver); 0118 (Barry Silver)
Rosie Benton . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0115 (Helen Lattimer)
Gil Birmingham .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0101 (Don Simmons); 0105 (Don Simmons)
Joshua Biton . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0114 (Eddie Wilson)
James Moses Black . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0117 (Studio Security Guard)
Geoffrey Blake. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0116 (Frank Blackwell)
JB Blanc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0109 (Max Chandler)
Ronnie Gene Blevins . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0109 (Todd Thurman)
Ben Bowen . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0116 (Desk Clerk)
Rod Britt. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0120 (Fred Reese)
Ursula Brooks. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0113 (Mrs. Binder)
Kelvin Brown .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0107 (Lyle Plimpton)
Rob Brownstein . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0120 (Arthur Knowles)
Jeanette Brox . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0119 (Leila)
Michael Reilly Burke . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .9

0101 (Rich Reynolds); 0102 (Rich Reynolds); 0104
(D.A. Rich Reynolds); 0106 (D.A. Rich Reynolds);
0110 (D.A. Rich Reynolds); 0111 (D.A. Rich
Reynolds); 0112 (D.A. Rich Reynolds); 0116
(D.A. Rich Reynolds); 0117 (D.A. Rich Reynolds)

C
Anna Camp.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .4

0115 (Violet Mills); 0116 (Violet Mills); 0117 (Violet
Mills); 0118 (Violet Mills)

B.K. Cannon. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0119 (Fern)

Caitlin Carmichael . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0114 (Geena Everson)

Shanley Caswell . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0116 (Patricia Edwards)

Elizabeth Chomko . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0109 (Chris Stengel)

Max Ciano . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0101 (High Roller)

Lenny Citrano . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0102 (Scarpone)

Josh Clark. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0121 (Attorney General)

Melinda Clarke . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4
0117 (Lena Cavallo); 0118 (Lena Cavallo); 0120 (Lena

Cavallo); 0121 (Lena Cavallo)
Adam Coggins . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0106 (Perp 2)
Tyler Conti. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0110 (Gospel Singer 1)
Christian Corp . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0110 (Pastor Amy Seger)
Christopher Cousins. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0104 (Randall)
Colleen Craig . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0115 (Dancer 1)
Cameryn Jackie Cubeau. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0110 (Older Savino Daugher)

D
Rod Damer . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0119 (Chaplain)
David Damiani . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0115 (Singer)
Kathleen M. Darcy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0109 (Doris Kern)
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Amy Davidson (I) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0108 (Jenny)

Derek Delgaudio . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0118 (Johnny Wonder)

Jamie Denbo . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0104 (Linda)

David Denman .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0109 (Clay Stinson)

Marika Dominczyk . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0115 (Nadia Lattimer)

Deanna Douglas . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0108 (Waitress)

Jason Douglas . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0101 (Stuart Mills)

Shawn Doyle . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6
0115 (Patrick Byrne); 0116 (Patrick Byrne); 0117

(Patrick Byrne); 0119 (Patrick Byrne); 0120
(Patrick Byrne); 0121 (Patrick Byrne)

Julie Dretzin. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0116 (Ellie)

Nicole DuPort. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0105 (Jane Ludlow)

Vanessa Dubasso . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0114 (Swedish Tourist 1)

E
Richard Edson . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Arthur Speziali)
Joe Egender . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0118 (Otis)
Paul Elia . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0115 (A.D.)
Alexandra Ella. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0118 (Woman)
Mallauri Esquibel . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0115 (Dancer 2)
Derrick Evans . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0110 (Gospel Singer 2)
Wynn Everett . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0119 (Hazel French)

F
Gene Farber . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0115 (Tamas)
Billy Finnigan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0121 (Gainsley Guard)
Rick Fitts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0104 (Porter)
Dave Florek. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0103 (Ben Boffa)
Julia Fowler . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0110 (Mrs. Tomisano)

G
David Gallagher . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0104 (Terry)
Peter Gannon. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2

0117 (Security Man); 0118 (Security Man)
Robert Gant . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0112 (Rick)
Alesa B. Gantz . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0106 (Cheryl)
Gill Gayle . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0107 (Farmer)
Christopher Gehrman .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0119 (Court Clerk)
Joel Gelman .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4

0104 (Valet); 0105 (Valet); 0115 (Jimmy); 0117 (Valet
1/Jimmy)

Jason Gerhardt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0114 (Pete Everson)

Rachel Germaine. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0117 (Marie)

Marcus Giamatti . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0103 (Scotty)

Enver Gjokaj . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6
0114 (Tommy Stone); 0115 (Tommy Stone); 0116

(Tommy Stone); 0117 (Tommy Stone); 0120
(Tommy Stone); 0121 (Tommy Stone)

Ryley Goldsworthy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0102 (Cashier)

Christopher Goodman .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0119 (Wayne Lasky)

Jaimie Goodwin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0109 (Audrey Ballard)

Lindsey Gort. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0113 (Ginny Binder)

Tim Griffin. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0108 (Lt. Norman Kemp)

Todd Grinnell. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0105 (Andy Meacham)

Greg Grunberg . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2
0104 (Milton); 0105 (Milton Ludlow)

H
Jamison Haase . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0103 (Max)
Charles Halford . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0112 (Tony Byrd)
Randy Hall. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0101 (Mechanic #1)
Melinda Page Hamilton . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0110 (Ginny)
James Handy. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0107 (Mr. Dobbs)
Larry Hankin . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0120 (Victor Ferris)
Roberta Hanlen . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0104 (Helen)
Jim Hanna . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0103 (Clay Winthrop)
Mark Harelik . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0115 (Dr. Herman Thrane)
Michael Harney . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0104 (Leo Farwood); 0111 (Leo Farwood)
Joseph Haro. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0119 (Tony)
Carter Hastings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0113 (Child in Car)
Kimberly Hawley . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Maid)
Sean Hennigan . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Sheriff Clinton Hennigan)
Megan Henning . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0104 (Tracy)
Keenan Henson . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0104 (Eddie Wheels); 0105 (Eddie)
Damon Herriman .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

0104 (Jones); 0105 (Mr. Jones); 0107 (Mr. Jones);
0113 (Mr. Jones); 0121 (Mr. Jones)

Christopher Heyerdahl. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0120 (Cal Sprouse)

Grainger Hines . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0110 (Del Merrick)

Alexandra Holden . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0112 (Dawn Fields)

Jim Holmes. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
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0106 (Dr. Howard Safran)
Eamon Hunt. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0116 (In-House Lawyer)
Austin Hébert . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0103 (Ronnie)

I
James Immekus. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0108 (Henry McCallister)
Matthew Iott . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0106 (Frank)
Michael Irby . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0117 (Eddie Bade)
Michael Ironside . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4

0111 (Porter Gainsley); 0119 (Porter Gainsley); 0120
(Porter Gainsley); 0121 (Porter Gainsley)

J
Anna Jacoby-Heron. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0113 (Anna)
Drew James . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0113 (Punk Biker 1)
Chauncey Jenkins . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0110 (Worker)
Aaron Jennings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0108 (Gary Hil)
Benton Jennings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0106 (Moderator)
Travis Johns . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0116 (Jimmy Munson)
Jeffrey Johnson . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0106 (Marty Gilson)
Sarah Jones . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0102 (Mia Rizzo)

K
Kayla Kalbfleisch. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0115 (Dancer 5)
Krista Kalmus . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0121 (Gigi)
A. Leslie Kies . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0118 (Check-in Clerk)
Yaani King . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0104 (Estelle Drew)
Jim Klock. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0107 (Deputy 1)
Lily Knight. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0111 (Doris Auster)
Kerry Knuppe . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0103 (Marlene)
Gary Kraus . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0106 (Truck Driver)

L
Amy Landecker. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0112 (Karen Schultz)
Dustin Lane . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Horse Rider-Rodeo)
Jeff Larson . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0102 (Gambler)
Roy Lea . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Dealer #2)
Anne Leighton. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0114 (Vera)
Kai Lennox . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0101 (Bob Perrin); 0102 (Bob Perrin)
Sean Lien . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0113 (Deputy)
Phoenix List . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0105 (Tim Ludlow)
Karina Logue . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0106 (Vicky Safran)
Omar Lopez-Cepero . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0117 (Abel Cervantes)
Billy Lush. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0101 (Cale Green)
Alexandra Lydon . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0114 (Shelly Everson)

M
Tzi Ma. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0110 (Watanabe)
Sunny Mabrey. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0101 (Jodie Kent)
Amanda MacDonald . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0120 (Greta)
James MacDonald . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (George Blanchford)
Ross Mackenzie . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0119 (Doctor)
Michael Maize . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

0104 (Ty); 0105 (Ty)
Karl Makinen. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0108 (Lou Massey)
P.J. Marino . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0106 (Jimmy)
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